
 

 

Board of Commissioners 

Work Session 

September 17, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

(Dinner being provided prior to the 
meeting by Boots on the Ground) 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Consideration of Agenda 
 

3. New Micro-transit Service (MicroLink) Update – GoRaleigh 
 

4. Comprehensive Plan Update – Withers Ravenel 

 

5. Legislative Hearing ANX-24-02 / REZ-24-01 – Merrit Property 
 

6. Building Height Text Amendment Briefing – LDO TA-24-02 

 
7. Adjourn 

 



 

 

Memo 
To: Town of Rolesville Mayor Currin and Board of Commissioners 

From: Meredith Gruber, Planning Director and Michele Raby, Planner II 

Date: September 12, 2024 

Re: Rezoning REZ-24-01 & Voluntary Annexation Petition ANX-24-02 – Merritt 
Property (0 Louisburg Road, 1224 Rolesville Road, 6200 Emily Lane) 

Background 

Rezoning – REZ-24-01 
The Town of Rolesville Planning Department received a Rezoning application in January 2024 
for properties located at 6200 Emily Lane (PIN 1768236815) and 1224 Rolesville Road (PIN 
1768328863), as well as a portion of an unaddressed property on Louisburg Road (PIN 
178928330), totaling approximately 148 acres.  The rezoning request is to change the zoning 
from Residential Low (RL) to Residential High as a Conditional Zoning District (RH-CZ) and a 
smaller portion, about 7 acres, to General Commercial as a Conditional Zoning District (GC-CZ).  
The application includes a Concept Site Plan and proposed Conditions of Approval.  See 
proposed Ordinance 2024-O-10. 
 

 
 

Merritt Property Concept Site Plan 



2 

The proposed Conditions of Approval are included as an attachment.  As per LDO Section 
3.3.B.2., Conditions and site-specific standards imposed in a conditional district shall be 
standards above and beyond the requirements of this LDO; conditions shall not lesser the 
standards in this LDO. Conditions shall be limited to those that address the conformance of the 
development and use of the site to the Rolesville Comprehensive Plan or the impacts 
reasonably expected to be generated by the development or use of the site. 
 
The proposed Conditions of Approval address the following topics: 

• Maximum of 505 residential units; 

• Age restriction (55 and over) will be enforced by deed restriction; 

• Timing of construction of amenities; 

• General Commercial District prohibited uses:  Tattoo Establishment, Vape and Tobacco 
Store, and Vehicle, Rental and Sales. 

 
Voluntary Annexation Petition – ANX-24-02  

A contiguous, voluntary annexation petition has been submitted, reviewed, and processed 
simultaneously with this Rezoning request; the petition and proposed Ordinance 2024-O-09 are 
attached.  On August 6, 2024, the Town Board called for the Town Clerk to investigate the 
sufficiency of the Petition in meeting G.S. 160A-31, and called for a date-certain Legislative 
hearing to occur on September 17, 2024. 

 
Applicant Justification 

The Applicant provided a brief statement noting the desire to create a neighborhood for 
residents aged 55 and over; it is included with the application. 

 
Neighborhood Meetings 

The Applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting for this Rezoning request on July 10, 2024; 
information is included as an attachment. 

 
Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use 
The 2017 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map designates one of the subject properties 
(98 acres) as Mixed-Use Neighborhood, and the other two properties (50 acres) as Business 
Park.   
 

• Per the Plan, Mixed Use Neighborhood is defined as Neighborhoods with a mix of uses 
that offer residents the ability to live, shop, work and play, in one community. The design 
and scale of the development encourages active living through a comprehensive and 
interconnected network of walkable streets that often support multiple modes of 
transportation.   

 

• Business Park is defined as Areas which provide employment opportunities varying from 
office, business services, or manufacturing and production.  These include warehousing, 
light manufacturing, medical or scientific research, and assembly operations.  They are 
commonly found near major corridors (i.e. highway or rail) and are generally buffered 
from surrounding development by transitional uses or landscaped areas that shield the 
view of structures, loading docks, or outdoor storage properties. 



3 

 
 
Community Transportation Plan  
The Town of Rolesville’s Community Transportation Plan (CTP, adopted 2021) includes 
recommendations for Thoroughfares, Collectors, and intersections. 
 

Thoroughfare Recommendations 

• Rolesville Road.  2-lane section with 2-way left turn lane, curb & gutter, bike lanes, and 
sidewalks. 

• Fowler Road Extension.  New 4-lane divided section with curb & gutter, bike lanes, and 
sidewalks. 

 
Collector Recommendations 

• North/South Collector Connection.  A future collector road is shown running North/South 
through the unaddressed property on Louisburg Road. 
 

Intersection Recommendations 

• Fowler Road Extension at Rolesville Road.  A new intersection is planned at Rolesville 
Road when the Fowler Road Extension is constructed. 

 
Greenway and Bike Plans 
As per the 2022 Greenway and Bike Plans, proposed pedestrian routes are shown in the 
following locations: 

• Sidepaths are planned on Rolesville Road and the Fowler Road Extension. 

• Bike Lanes are planned on Rolesville Road, the Fowler Road Extension, and the 
North/South Collector Connection through the unaddressed property on Louisburg Road. 
 

Consistency 
The Applicant’s rezoning request is consistent with the Town of Rolesville’s Comprehensive 
Plan for the following reasons: 

• The proposed single family detached and attached housing types fit within the Mixed 
Use Neighborhood land use description as the residential component. 

• The proposed vehicular circulation network will enhance or establish Thoroughfare and 
Collector connections, respectively, as recommended by the Town’s Community 
Transportation Plan.   

• The proposed sidepaths will establish pedestrian connections as recommended by 
Rolesville’s Greenway Plan. 

 
The Applicant’s rezoning request is not consistent with the Town of Rolesville’s Comprehensive 
Plan for the following reasons: 

• The proposed single family detached and attached housing types do not fit within the 
Business Park Future Land Use Designation.  In addition, in 2022 the Commercial 
Growth Feasibility Study was completed.  It included market analysis, site analysis, a 
conceptual master plan, and an action plan to diversify Rolesville’s tax base with 
nonresidential development along the future Fowler Road extension. 

 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

The consulting firm, Stantec, has prepared the Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the Merritt 
Property rezoning application.  The TIA notes a total of 4,744 total daily trips for the proposed 



4 

Senior Adult and Retail uses.  The traffic study also defines specific improvements for the US 
401 Bypass at Young Street, Rolesville Road at the Merritt Property driveway, and Rolesville 
Road at Fowler Road.  Please see the attached draft TIA report. 
 
As per Land Development Ordinance (LDO) Section 9.2.5.B. Connectivity, streets shall be 
interconnected and connect with adjacent streets external to the subdivision to provide multiple 
routes for pedestrian and vehicle trips. Implementation of any access points or associated 
improvements recommended by a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) are required. 

 
Development Review 

The Technical Review Committee (TRC) reviewed three versions of this Rezoning application, 
with all comments pertinent to the consideration of the general development plan being 
resolved. Note that this does not mean that all LDO subdivision and/or site development 
regulations have been demonstrated, as the attached Concept Site Plan is only a conceptual 
plan, and not an engineered and dimensioned layout.  

 
Planning Board Recommendation  

On August 26, 2024, the Planning Board met to review and provide a recommendation on the 
Rezoning application. Following presentations by Staff and the Applicant, Board members 
asked about the permitted commercial uses, if the entire community is age-restricted, and 
voiced concerns about water runoff and traffic. 
 
The Planning Board recommended approval with a vote of 4 – 1 (4 ayes, 1 nay, 1 recusal, and 1 
absent). 

 
Staff Analysis / Recommendation 

While this rezoning application demonstrates consistency and some inconsistency with 
Rolesville’s Comprehensive Plan, it is reasonable for staff to recommend approval for the 
following reasons: 
 

• It is a priority for the Town Board of Commissioners to find locations for age restricted 
housing in Rolesville.  As Town staff are working on the Affordable Housing Plan and 
getting started on the Comprehensive Plan update, the need for different housing types 
for different people, such as those over age 55, is becoming more and more prevalent.   

• In addition, the rezoning application aligns with the Town of Rolesville’s Strategic Plan 
Objective 3.5 - Encourage long-range planning to address growth concerns related to 
the watershed, diverse housing, traffic, and the environment.  The provision of age 
restricted housing adds to development opportunities for diverse housing needs. 

 
Consistency and Reasonableness 

As per the Comprehensive Plan section of this report, rezoning application REZ-24-01 is 
generally consistent with Rolesville’s adopted plans and policies and is therefore reasonable. 

 
 
 
 



5 

Proposed Motion 

1. Motion to (approve or deny) rezoning REZ-24-01 – Merritt Property (0 Louisburg Road 
(portion of) PIN 1758928330, 1224 Rolesville Road (portion of) PIN 1768328863 and 
6200 Emily Lane PIN 1768236815). 
 

2. (Following Approval) Motion to adopt a Plan Consistency Statement and Statement of 
Reasonableness for REZ-24-01. 
 

3. Motion to (approve or deny) the Voluntary Annexation Petition received under G.S. 
160A-31 for ANX-24-02 – Merritt Property (0 Louisburg Road (portion of) PIN 
1758928330, 1224 Rolesville Road (portion of) PIN 1768328863 and 6200 Emily Lane 
PIN 1768236815). 

Or  

4. Motion to continue the Legislative Hearing and/or further consideration for REZ-24-01 
and ANX-24-02 to a future date-certain Town Board of Commissioners’ meeting. 

 
Attachments   

1 Vicinity Map 

2 Zoning Map 

3 Future Land Use Map 

4 Map Amendment (Rezoning) Application 

5 Applicant Neighborhood Meeting Package 

6 Concept Site Plan 

7 Conditions of Approval 

8 Traffic Impact Analysis 

9 Voluntary Annexation Petition Attachments to Ordinance 2024-O-09 

10 Voluntary Annexation Petition Ordinance 2024-O-09 

11 Rezoning Map Amendment Ordinance 2024-O-10 

 





Michele Raby
Polygon



Michele Raby
Polygon



























98.166

RH (Residential High Density) CU























































98.166

RH (Residential High Density) CU





















































98.166

RH (Residential High Density) CU

















































98.166

RH (Residential High Density) CU

























 CMP Professional Land Surveyors 
Michael A. Moss, PLS L-3794 Telephone (919) 556-3148 
Jason L. Panciera, PLS L-3835, CFSNC-140
L. Jordan Parker Jr., PLS L-4685
333 South White Street, Post Office Box 1253
Wake Forest, NC  27588-1253

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

BEGINNING AT A NEW IRON PIPE, SAID NEW IRON PIPE HAVING NC GRID NAD 83/2011 COORDINATE  
N(y): 783309.27’ E(x): 2164159.73’, SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING LOCATED ON THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF-
WAY OF ROLESVILLE ROAD (S.R.#1003), SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING THE COMMON FRONT CORNER OF 
PARCEL PIN# 1768.03-33-7689 AND SUBJECT PARCEL; THENCE ALONG ROLESVILLE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY  
S 06°55'13"E A DISTANCE OF 384.56' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°12'17"E A DISTANCE OF 100.22' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 07°09'39"E A DISTANCE OF 100.17' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°53'34"E A DISTANCE OF 
100.14' TO A POINT; THENCE S 08°05'58"E A DISTANCE OF 226.00' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°02'42"E A 
DISTANCE OF 8.65' TO A POINT; THENCE N 79°37'37"W A DISTANCE OF 135.63' TO A POINT; THENCE 
WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 405.68', WITH A RADIUS OF 1,180.00', 
WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 69°46'41"W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 403.68',; TO A POINT; THENCE  
N 59°55'45"W A DISTANCE OF 7.64' TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN 
ARC LENGTH OF 264.63', WITH A RADIUS OF 700.00', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 70°45'33"W, WITH A 
CHORD LENGTH OF 263.06', TO A POINT; THENCE S 03°01'29"E A DISTANCE OF 127.16’ TO AN EXISTING 
IRON PIPE; THENCE S 86°15'26"W A DISTANCE OF 1,907.10' TO AN AXLE;I I  THENCE S 02°38'01"W A 
DISTANCE OF 41.66' TO A POINT; THENCE S 86°36'19"W A DISTANCE OF 80.15' TO A POINT; THENCE  
N 35°30'42"W A DISTANCE OF 25.71' TO A POINT; THENCE N 18°40'09"W A DISTANCE OF 18.02' TO A 
POINT; THENCE N 16°33'18"E A DISTANCE OF 29.75' TO A POINT; THENCE S 65°55'14"W A DISTANCE OF 
41.93' TO A POINT; THENCE N 34°33'28"W A DISTANCE OF 67.60' TO A POINT; THENCE N 63°56'22"W A 
DISTANCE OF 58.64' TO A POINT; THENCE S 12°10'41"E A DISTANCE OF 28.75' TO A POINT; THENCE  
S 62°16'28"W A DISTANCE OF 40.10' TO A POINT; THENCE N 48°52'56"W A DISTANCE OF 41.03' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 66°34'20"W A DISTANCE OF 183.88' TO A POINT; THENCE S 42°14'08"W A DISTANCE OF 
280.13' TO A POINT; THENCE S 10°05'45"E A DISTANCE OF 34.24' TO A POINT; THENCE S 66°32'41"W A 
DISTANCE OF 69.18' TO A POINT; THENCE S 67°17'00"W A DISTANCE OF 140.16' TO A POINT; THENCE S 
72°23'53"W A DISTANCE OF 370.65' TO A POINT; THENCE S 89°38'01"W A DISTANCE OF 175.48' TO A 
POINT; THENCE N 03°38'40"W A DISTANCE OF 93.43' TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE S 89°04'03"W A 
DISTANCE OF 186.00’ TO A NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE N 00°20'34" W A DISTANCE OF 1,150.25’ TO A NEW 
IRON PIPE; THENCE N 88°47'41"E A DISTANCE OF 1,587.76' TO AN EXISTING MASON NAIL IN A STONE; 
THENCE N 02°11'39"E A DISTANCE OF 1,618.25' TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE  S 88°15'47"E A 
DISTANCE OF 1,747.25' TO A NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE S 00°48'39"E A DISTANCE OF 1,487.52' TO A BENT 
IRON BAR; THENCE N 89°45'22"E A DISTANCE OF 683.75' TO A NEW IRON PIPE; WHICH IS THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN AREA OF 6,469,903 SQUARE FEET, 148.529 ACRES. 

Updated Legal Descriptions Added September 3, 2024



 CMP Professional Land Surveyors 
Michael A. Moss, PLS L-3794                                                   Telephone (919) 556-3148 
Jason L. Panciera, PLS L-3835, CFSNC-140                              
L. Jordan Parker Jr., PLS L-4685  
333 South White Street, Post Office Box 1253 
Wake Forest, NC  27588-1253 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
Commercial Parcel#1: 
 
BEGINNING AT A POINT, SAID POINT BEING LOCATED ON THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF ROLESVILLE 
ROAD (S.R.#1003), SAID POINT BEING LOCATED S 06°56'30" E A DISTANCE OF 415.96 FROM A NEW  
IRON PIPE, SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING THE COMMON CORNER OF PARCEL PIN#1768.03-32-8863 &  
PIN# 1768.03-33-7689 LOCATED ON THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF ROLESVILLE ROAD (S.R.#1003), SAID 
NEW IRON PIPE HAVING NC GRID NAD 83/2011 COORDINATE N(y): 783309.27’  E(x): 2164159.73’;  THENCE 
ALONG ROLESVILLE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY S 07°12'17"E A DISTANCE OF 68.82' TO A POINT; THENCE  
S 07°09'39"E A DISTANCE OF 100.17' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°53'34"E A DISTANCE OF 100.14' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 08°05'58"E A DISTANCE OF 226.00' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°02'42"E A DISTANCE OF 
8.65' TO A POINT;THENCE LEAVING ROLESVILLE RIGHT-OF-WAY N 79°37'37"W A DISTANCE OF 135.63' TO A 
POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 305.00', WITH A RADIUS 
OF 1,180.00', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 72°13'20"W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 304.15',; TO A 
POINT; THENCE N 01°06'16"W A DISTANCE OF 375.37' TO A POINT; THENCE N 88°57'26"E A DISTANCE OF 
362.56' TO A POINT; WHICH IS THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN AREA OF 173,891 SQUARE 
FEET, 3.992 ACRES. 
 
 



 CMP Professional Land Surveyors 
Michael A. Moss, PLS L-3794                                                   Telephone (919) 556-3148 
Jason L. Panciera, PLS L-3835, CFSNC-140                              
L. Jordan Parker Jr., PLS L-4685  
333 South White Street, Post Office Box 1253 
Wake Forest, NC  27588-1253 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
Commercial Parcel#2 
 
BEGINNING AT A POINT, SAID POINT BEING LOCATED S 88°47'41" W A DISTANCE OF 253.62’ FROM AN 
EXISTING MASON NAIL IN STONE, SAID EXISTING MASON NAIL IN STONE BEING THE SOUTH EAST CORNER 
OF PARCEL PIN# 1768.03-13-1851, SAID EXISITNG MASON NAIL IN STONE HAVING NC GRID NAD 83/2011 
COORDINATE N(y): 783229.64’ E(x): 2161646.54’; THENCE S 01°20'06"E A DISTANCE OF 148.30' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 28°18'53"E A DISTANCE OF 102.59' TO A POINT; THENCE S 18°49'20"E A DISTANCE OF 
123.07' TO A POINT; THENCE S 19°04'12"E A DISTANCE OF 205.39' TO A POINT; THENCE N 70°05'04"W A 
DISTANCE OF 178.90' TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN ARC LENGTH 
OF 436.24', WITH A RADIUS OF 1,000.00', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 82°34'55"W, WITH A CHORD 
LENGTH OF 432.79',; TO A POINT; THENCE N 01°12'43"W A DISTANCE OF 423.04' TO A POINT; THENCE  
N 88°47'41"E A DISTANCE OF 447.49' TO A POINT; WHICH IS THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN 
AREA OF 226,016 SQUARE FEET, 5.189 ACRES. 
 



 CMP Professional Land Surveyors 
Michael A. Moss, PLS L-3794                                                   Telephone (919) 556-3148 
Jason L. Panciera, PLS L-3835, CFSNC-140                              
L. Jordan Parker Jr., PLS L-4685  
333 South White Street, Post Office Box 1253 
Wake Forest, NC  27588-1253 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
NORTH ANNEXATION LINE AREA : 
(AREA BEING ANNEXED) 
 
BEGINNING AT A NEW IRON PIPE, SAID NEW IRON PIPE HAVING NC GRID NAD 83/2011 COORDINATE  
N(y): 783309.27’ E(x): 2164159.73’, SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING LOCATED ON THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF-
WAY OF ROLESVILLE ROAD (S.R.#1003), SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING THE COMMON FRONT CORNER OF 
PARCEL PIN# 1768.03-33-7689 AND SUBJECT PARCEL; THENCE ALONG ROLESVILLE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY  
S 06°55'13"E A DISTANCE OF 384.56' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°12'17"E A DISTANCE OF 100.22' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 07°09'39"E A DISTANCE OF 100.17' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°53'34"E A DISTANCE OF 
100.14' TO A POINT; THENCE S 08°05'58"E A DISTANCE OF 226.00' TO A POINT;  THENCE S 07°02'42"E A 
DISTANCE OF 8.65' TO A POINT; THENCE N 79°37'37"W A DISTANCE OF 135.63' TO A POINT; THENCE 
WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 405.68', WITH A RADIUS OF 1,180.00', 
WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 69°46'41"W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 403.68',; TO A POINT; 
THENCE N 59°55'45"W A DISTANCE OF 7.64' TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT 
WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 264.63', WITH A RADIUS OF 700.00', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 
70°45'33"W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 263.06', TO A POINT; THENCE N 03°01'29"W A DISTANCE OF 
655.62' TO A BENT EXISTING IRON BAR; THENCE N 89°45'22"E A DISTANCE OF 683.75' TO A NEW IRON 
PIPE; WHICH IS THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN AREA OF 566,105 SQUARE FEET, 12.996 
ACRES. 
 



 CMP Professional Land Surveyors 
Michael A. Moss, PLS L-3794                                                   Telephone (919) 556-3148 
Jason L. Panciera, PLS L-3835, CFSNC-140                              
L. Jordan Parker Jr., PLS L-4685  
333 South White Street, Post Office Box 1253 
Wake Forest, NC  27588-1253 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 
 
BEGINNING AT AN EXISTING MASON NAIL IN STONE, SAID EXISTING MASON NAIL HAVING NC GRID NAD 
83/2011 COORDINATE N(y):783229.64’ E(x):2161646.54’, SAID EXISTING MASON NAIL IN STONE BEING 
THE COMMON CORNER OF PARCEL PIN#1768.03-13-1851 AND SUBJECT PARCEL; THENCE S 01°45'54"W A 
DISTANCE OF 829.41' TO A POINT; THENCE S 86°15'26"W A DISTANCE OF 6.75' TO AN AXLE; THENCE  
S 02°38'01"W A DISTANCE OF 41.66' TO A POINT; THENCE S 86°36'19"W A DISTANCE OF 80.15' TO A 
POINT; THENCE N 35°30'42"W A DISTANCE OF 25.71' TO A POINT; THENCE N 18°40'09"W A DISTANCE OF 
18.02' TO A POINT; THENCE N 16°33'18"E A DISTANCE OF 29.75' TO A POINT; THENCE S 65°55'14"W A 
DISTANCE OF 41.93' TO A POINT; THENCE N 34°33'28"W A DISTANCE OF 67.60' TO A POINT; THENCE  
N 63°56'22"W A DISTANCE OF 58.64' TO A POINT; THENCE S 12°10'41"E A DISTANCE OF 28.75' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 62°16'28"W A DISTANCE OF 40.10' TO A POINT; THENCE N 48°52'56"W A DISTANCE OF 
41.03' TO A POINT; THENCE S 66°34'20"W A DISTANCE OF 183.88' TO A POINT; THENCE S 42°14'08"W A 
DISTANCE OF 280.13' TO A POINT; THENCE S 10°05'45"E A DISTANCE OF 34.24' TO A POINT; THENCE  
S 66°32'41"W A DISTANCE OF 69.18' TO A POINT; THENCE S 67°17'00"W A DISTANCE OF 140.16' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 72°23'53"W A DISTANCE OF 370.65' TO A POINT; THENCE S 89°38'01"W A DISTANCE OF 
175.48' TO A NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE N 03°38'40"W A DISTANCE OF 93.43' TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE;  
THENCE S 89°04'03"W A DISTANCE OF 186.00’ TO A NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE N 00°20'34" W A DISTANCE 
OF 1,150.25’ TO A NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE N 88°47'41"E A DISTANCE OF 1,587.76' TO AN EXISTING 
MASON NAIL IN A STONE; WHICH IS THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN AREA OF 1,627,693 
SQUARE FEET, 37.367 ACRES. 



 CMP Professional Land Surveyors 
Michael A. Moss, PLS L-3794                                                   Telephone (919) 556-3148 
Jason L. Panciera, PLS L-3835, CFSNC-140                              
L. Jordan Parker Jr., PLS L-4685  
333 South White Street, Post Office Box 1253 
Wake Forest, NC  27588-1253 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 
BEGINNING AT A NEW IRON PIPE, SAID NEW IRON PIPE HAVING NC GRID NAD 83/2011 COORDINATE 
N(y):784793.74’ E(x):2163454.94’, SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING THE COMMON CORNER OF PARCEL 
PIN#1768.03-34-7557 AND SUBJECT PARCEL; THENCE S 00°48'39"E A DISTANCE OF 1,487.52' TO A BENT 
EXISTING IRON BAR; THENCE S 03°01'29"E A DISTANCE OF 782.78' TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; 
THENCE S 86°15'26"W A DISTANCE OF 1,900.36' TO A POINT; THENCE N 01°45'54"E A DISTANCE OF 
829.41' TO AN EXISTING MASON NAIL IN STONE; THENCE N 02°11'39"E A DISTANCE OF 1,618.25' TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE S 88°15'47"E A DISTANCE OF 1,747.25' TO A NEW IRON PIPE; WHICH IS THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN AREA OF 4,276,105 SQUARE FEET, 98.166 ACRES. 













PROPOSED  ZONING  CONDITIONS  FOR  THE  MERRITT  PROPERTY   

MAP  AMENDMENT  REQUEST 

REZ-24-01 

PINS 1758-92-8330 (portion of), 1768-23-6815 AND 1768-32-8863 (portion of) 
February 1, 2024 
Amended April 11, 2024 
Amended June 26, 2024 
Amended July 15, 2024 
Amended August 22, 2024 
Amended August 28, 2024 
Amended August 30, 2024 
 
 
 

1. The subject property shall be developed generally in accordance with the Concept Site 

Plan/Zoning Exhibit incorporated herein as if fully set out. 

2. No townhouse structure shall contain more than six units. 

3. Construction of the on-site amenities shall be completed when the 400th building permit 

is issued. 

4. This will be an age-restricted development for residents age 55 and older.  Age 

restrictions will be enforced by deed restrictions according to standards set by Fair 

Housing regulations per the US Department of Housing and Urban Development.   

5. No more than 505 units will be permitted for the development.   

6. General Commercial District to prohibit the following uses: Tattoo Establishment, Vape 

and Tabacco, Store and Vehicle, Rental and Sales. 

  



 

REZ 24-01: Merritt Property 
Traffic Impact Analysis 
Rolesville, North Carolina 

September 10, 2024  
 

Prepared for: 
 
Town of Rolesville 
502 Southtown Circle 
Rolesville, NC 27571 

 
Applicant: 
 
American Engineering 
4020 Westchase Blvd, Ste. 450 
Raleigh, NC 27607 
 

Prepared by: 
 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc.  
801 Jones Franklin Road 
Suite 300 
Raleigh, NC 27606 

 

 
 

 

 

D R
 A F T



Sign-off Sheet 

This document entitled REZ 24-01: Merritt Property Traffic Impact Analysis was prepared by Stantec Consulting Services 
Inc. (“Stantec”) for the account of Town of Rolesville (the “Client”). Any reliance on this document by any third party is 
strictly prohibited. The material in it reflects Stantec’s professional judgment in light of the scope, schedule and other 
limitations stated in the document and in the contract between Stantec and the Client. The opinions in the document are 
based on conditions and information existing at the time the document was published and do not take into account any 
subsequent changes. In preparing the document, Stantec did not verify information supplied to it by others. Any use which 
a third party makes of this document is the responsibility of such third party. Such third party agrees that Stantec shall not 
be responsible for costs or damages of any kind, if any, suffered by it or any other third party as a result of decisions 
made or actions taken based on this document. 

 

Prepared by   

(signature) 

Pierre Tong, PE 

Reviewed by   

(signature) 

Austyn Beci, PE 

Approved by   

(signature) 

 Matt Peach, PE, PTOE 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

Table of Contents 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................................... I 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................ 1.1 

2.0 INVENTORY OF TRAFFIC CONDITIONS .................................................................... 2.4 
2.1 STUDY AREA ................................................................................................................ 2.4 
2.2 PROPOSED ACCESS ................................................................................................... 2.4 
2.3 EXISTING CONDITIONS ............................................................................................... 2.4 
2.4 FUTURE CONDITIONS ................................................................................................. 2.5 

2.4.1 Broadmoor (fka Woodlief Assemblage) ........................................................ 2.5 
2.4.2 The Point ...................................................................................................... 2.6 
2.4.3 Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road ........................................................... 2.6 

3.0 TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION ................................................................... 3.9 
3.1 TRIP GENERATION ...................................................................................................... 3.9 
3.2 SITE TRIP DISTRIBUTION ............................................................................................ 3.9 

4.0 TRAFFIC VOLUMES ................................................................................................... 4.15 
4.1 DATA COLLECTION .................................................................................................... 4.15 
4.2 BACKGROUND TRAFFIC GROWTH .......................................................................... 4.15 
4.3 ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC ...................................................................... 4.15 

4.3.1 1216 Rolesville Road .................................................................................. 4.15 
4.3.2 Broadmoor (fka Woodlief Assemblage) ...................................................... 4.15 
4.3.3 Kalas Falls .................................................................................................. 4.15 
4.3.4 Rolesville Crossing ..................................................................................... 4.16 
4.3.5 The Point .................................................................................................... 4.16 
4.3.6 The Preserve at Moody Farm ..................................................................... 4.16 
4.3.7 Tucker-Wilkins ............................................................................................ 4.16 

4.4 NO-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES ................................................................................. 4.16 
4.5 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES ........................................................................................ 4.16 

5.0 CAPACITY ANALYSIS ................................................................................................ 5.22 
5.1 2024 EXISTING ........................................................................................................... 5.24 
5.2 2028 NO-BUILD ........................................................................................................... 5.25 
5.3 2028 BUILD .................................................................................................................. 5.28 
5.4 2028 BUILD IMPROVED ............................................................................................. 5.30 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS ................................................................................................ 6.33 

7.0 REFERENCES ............................................................................................................. 7.36 

8.0 APPENDIX ................................................................................................................... 8.36 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1: Existing Conditions ...................................................................................................... 2.5 
Table 2: Trip Generation ............................................................................................................ 3.9 
Table 3: Level of Service Criteria ............................................................................................. 5.22 
Table 4: 2024 Existing Level of Service and Delay .................................................................. 5.24 
Table 5: 2028 No-Build Level of Service and Delay ................................................................ 5.27 
Table 6: 2028 Build Level of Service and Delay ...................................................................... 5.29 
Table 7: 2028 Build Improved Level of Service and Delay ...................................................... 5.32 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 1: Site Location ............................................................................................................... 1.2 
Figure 2: Site Plan ..................................................................................................................... 1.3 
Figure 3: 2024 Existing Lanes and Traffic Control ..................................................................... 2.7 
Figure 4: 2028 No-Build Lanes and Traffic Control .................................................................... 2.8 
Figure 5: Trip Distribution ......................................................................................................... 3.11 
Figure 6: Trip Assignment ........................................................................................................ 3.12 
Figure 7: Pass-By Distribution ................................................................................................. 3.13 
Figure 8: Pass-By Assignment ................................................................................................. 3.14 
Figure 9: 2024 Existing Traffic Volumes .................................................................................. 4.17 
Figure 10: Background Traffic Growth ..................................................................................... 4.18 
Figure 11: Adjacent Development Traffic Volumes .................................................................. 4.19 
Figure 12: 2028 No-Build Traffic Volumes ............................................................................... 4.20 
Figure 13: 2028 Build Traffic Volumes ..................................................................................... 4.21 
Figure 14: Recommended Improvements ................................................................................ 6.35 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

   
 

Executive Summary 

The proposed Merritt Property development (Rezoning Application 24-01) is located on the west side of Rolesville 
Road northwest of the intersection with Fowler Road in Rolesville, NC. The parcel is currently zoned as Residential 
Low Density (RL). The applicant is pursuing a rezoning to a new zoning district, Residential Urban (RU) that would 
allow for age-targeted single-family detached and attached dwelling units in the form of higher-density residential with 
limited non-residential uses. 

The site is anticipated to be completed in 2028 and consists of 227 units of senior adult single-family (detached) 
homes, 278 units of senior adult multi-family (attached) homes, 21,000 square feet of retail, and a 15,000 square foot 
pharmacy with a drive thru. Using the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, it is 
estimated that at full build-out the development is expected to generate 4,744 new trips per average weekday. In the 
AM and PM peak hours, the development is expected to generate 226 trips (98 entering and 128 exiting) and 354 
trips (190 entering and 164 exiting); respectively. Access to the site is envisioned to be provided by a driveway 
located along Rolesville Road, as well as extending Fowler Road to the west from its current terminus at Rolesville 
Road, adding a fourth leg to the existing three-legged intersection. 

The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed development in terms of traffic conditions, evaluate the ability 
of the adjacent roadways to accommodate the additional traffic volumes, and recommend transportation 
improvements needed to mitigate congestion that may result from the additional site traffic. This report presents trip 
generation, trip distribution, traffic analysis, and recommendations for transportation improvements needed to meet 
anticipated traffic demands. 

This report examines the following scenarios for the AM and PM peak hours: 

• 2024 Existing 
• 2028 No-Build 
• 2028 Build 
• 2028 Build Improved 

Capacity analysis for the AM and PM peak hours in each scenario was performed for the following existing 
intersections: 

• US 401 Bypass at SR 1003 (Young Street) 
• US 401 Bypass at SR 1003 (Young Street) East U-Turn 
• US 401 Bypass at SR 1003 (Young Street) West U-Turn 
• SR 1003 (Young Street) at SR 2305 (Quarry Road) 
• SR 1003 (Young Street / Rolesville Road) at Rolesville High School 
• SR 1003 (Rolesville Road) at SR 2308 (Fowler Road) 
• SR 1003 (Rolesville Road) at SR 2224 (Mitchell Mill Road) 

The results of the capacity analysis at these existing and planned intersections, in addition to the aforementioned 
driveways, are summarized in Tables ES-1: 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

   
 

Table ES-1: Level of Service Summary Table 

Level of Service 
(Delay in seconds/vehicle) 

2024 
Existing 

2028 
No-Build 

2028 
Build 

2028 Build- 
Improved 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

US 401 Bypass Eastbound at 
Young Street 

A 
(9.3) 

A 
(6.9) 

A 
(9.1) 

B 
(12.0) 

A  
(8.9) 

B 
(13.7) 

A 
(9.1) 

B 
(13.5) 

US 401 Bypass Westbound at 
Young Street 

B 
(13.2) 

A 
(7.8) 

C  
(20.4) 

A 
(9.6) 

C  
(22.1) 

A 
(9.7) 

C 
(22.1) 

A 
(9.7) 

US 401 Bypass U-Turn East of 
Young Street 

A 
(3.2) 

A 
(2.5) 

C  
(29.9) 

B 
(15.2) 

C 
(33.8) 

B 
(15.8) 

C 
(33.8) 

B 
(15.8) 

US 401 Bypass U-Turn West of 
Young Street 

A 
(2.3) 

A 
(3.7) 

A 
(3.1) 

A 
(4.1) 

A  
(3.1) 

A 
(4.4) 

A 
(3.1) 

A 
(4.4) 

Young Street at Quarry Road / 
The Point North Driveway 

C 
(18.6) 

B 
(12.1) 

C 
(23.5) 

C 
(25.9) 

C 
(27.0) 

C 
(32.5) 

C 
(27.6) 

C 
(32.1) 

Rolesville Road at Rolesville 
HS Driveway / The Point South 

Driveway 

E 
(41.9) 

B 
(11.5) 

D  
(37.4) 

A 
(6.2) 

D 
(43.0) 

A 
(7.0) 

D 
(41.3) 

A 
(6.8) 

Rolesville Road at Merritt 
Property Driveway     

F 
(##) 

D 
(34.4) 

B 
(13.0) 

D 
(25.8) 

Rolesville Road at 
Fowler Road 

B 
(11.8) 

B 
(10.6) 

F 
(104.8) 

F 
(##) 

F 
(##) 

F 
(##) 

C 
(21.2) 

B 
(19.4) 

Rolesville Road at 
Mitchell Mill Road 

C 
(18.7) 

B 
(13.0) 

D 
(41.2) 

C 
(21.0) 

D  
(48.0) 

C 
(23.6) 

D 
(48.4) 

C 
(23.3) 

Signalized Intersection 
Unsignalized Intersection 

Intersection not Analyzed in Scenario 
                                            ##                       Delay Exceeds 300 Seconds 

Rolesville’s LDO8, Section 8.E, establishes the following Level of Service Standards: 

1. The traffic impact analysis must demonstrate that the proposed development would not cause 
build-out-year, peak-hour levels of service on any arterial or collector road or intersection within the 
study area to fall below Level of Service (LOS) "D," as defined by the latest edition of the Highway 
Capacity Manual, or, where the existing level of service is already LOS "E" that the proposed 
development would not cause the LOS to fall to the next lower letter grade. 

2. If the road segment or intersection is already LOS "F," the traffic impact analysis must demonstrate 
that the proposed development, with any proposed improvements, would not cause build-out year 
peak-hour operation to degrade more than five (5) percent of the total delay on any intersection 
approach. 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

   
 

As shown in Table ES-1, the proposed development impacts the intersection of Rolesville Road at Fowler Road. In 
addition, there are significant queuing concerns along eastbound US 401 Bypass in the SimTraffic simulation runs as 
a result of the proposed development.  

Based on the findings of this study, specific improvements have been identified and should be completed as part of 
the proposed development. Intersections where no improvements are recommended are locations that do not meet 
the LOS Standards specified in the LDO8 or are not otherwise recommended. These recommendations are illustrated 
in Figure ES-1. 

Averette Road, Young Street, and Rolesville Road Corridor Study 

It is recommended that the applicant coordinate their site plan and improvements with the findings of the Averette 
Road, Young Street, and Rolesville Road Corridor Study to ensure consistency with future addendums to the 
Community Transportation Plan. 

US 401 Bypass at Young Street 

• Modify the eastbound right-turn such that the movement is a free-flowing right-turn from the US 401 Bypass 
onto southbound Young Street. This recommendation will require the following: 

o Removal of the existing yield sign and new signing and striping installed. 
o A second southbound travel lane be constructed on Young Street from the US 401 Bypass 

southward to Quarry Road. This lane is recommended to tie into the exclusive right-turn lane into 
The Point development. 

Young Street at Quarry Road / The Point North Driveway 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection. 

Young Street at Rolesville HS Driveway / The Point South Driveway 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection. 

Rolesville Road at Merritt Property Driveway 

• Construct the northernmost driveway as a right-in / right-out access point with one ingress lane and one 
egress lane. 

• Construct an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

Rolesville Road at Fowler Road 

• Extend Fowler Road from its current terminus at Rolesville Road to the west as shown on the site plan. 
• Modify the existing intersection to provide full-movement access from eastbound Fowler Road onto 

Rolesville Road. 
• Provide adequate sight distance for the eastbound approach of Fowler Road at the intersection. 
• Provide signing and striping such that the intersection operates as a two-way stop-controlled intersection. 

However, the intersection is recommended to be evaluated against the warrants for the installation of a 
traffic signal as outlined in the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. If warranted and approved by 
NCDOT, a traffic signal is recommended to be installed at the intersection. 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

   
 

• Construct an exclusive southbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct an exclusive northbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection.

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

   
 

Figure ES-1:  Recommended Improvements 

  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Introduction  
September 10, 2024 

  1.1 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

The proposed Merritt Property development (Rezoning Application 24-01) is located on the west side of Rolesville 
Road northwest of the intersection with Fowler Road in Rolesville, NC. The parcel is currently zoned as Residential 
Low Density (RL). The applicant is pursuing a rezoning to a new zoning district, Residential Urban (RU) that would 
allow for age-targeted single-family detached and attached dwelling units in the form of higher-density residential with 
limited non-residential uses. 

The site is anticipated to be completed in 2028 and consists of 227 units of senior adult single-family (detached) 
homes, 278 units of senior adult multi-family (attached) homes, 21,000 square feet of retail, and a 15,000 square foot 
pharmacy with a drive thru. The site location is shown in Figure 1. The site plan, prepared by American Engineering, 
can be found in Figure 2. 

The traffic analysis considers future build conditions during the build-out year (2028). The analysis scenarios are as 
follows: 

• 2024 Existing 
• 2028 No-Build 
• 2028 Build 
• 2028 Build Improved 

The purpose of this report is to evaluate the development in terms of projected vehicular traffic conditions, evaluate 
the ability of the adjacent roadways to accommodate the additional traffic, and recommend transportation 
improvements needed to mitigate congestion that may result from additional site traffic. This report presents trip 
generation, trip distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for improvements needed to meet anticipated 
traffic demands. The analysis examines the AM and PM peak hours for the aforementioned analysis scenarios. 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Introduction  
September 10, 2024 

   
 

Figure 1: Site Location 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Introduction  
September 10, 2024 

  1.3 
 

Figure 2: Site Plan 

  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  
September 10, 2024 

  2.4 
 

2.0 INVENTORY OF TRAFFIC CONDITIONS 

2.1 STUDY AREA 

Stantec coordinated with the Town of Rolesville, the applicant, and the North Carolina Department of Transportation 
(NCDOT) to determine the appropriate study area and assumptions. The following existing intersections were agreed 
upon to be analyzed to determine the impacts associated with this development. These intersections are shown in 
Figure 1. 

• US 401 Bypass at Young Street 
• US 401 Bypass at Young Street East U-Turn 
• US 401 Bypass at Young Street West U-Turn 
• Young Street at Quarry Road 
• Young Street / Rolesville Road at Rolesville High School 
• Rolesville Road at Fowler Road 
• Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road 

2.2 PROPOSED ACCESS 

Access to the site is envisioned to be provided by two accesses located along Rolesville Road. The first and 
northernmost driveway (Site Driveway) is located approximately 400’ north of the existing intersection of Fowler Road 
The second and southernmost driveway (Fowler Road Extension) is an extension of Fowler Road across Rolesville 
Road running through the development. 

In the current site plan, Fowler Road is proposed as a 4-lane divided roadway with two 12’ lanes in each direction, a 
14’ median and 6’ sidewalks on both sides of the roadway. The dedicated right-of-way width of Fowler Road 
Extension is 110’ In total. There are proposed to be 7 access points to the Merritt Property development from Fowler 
Road Extension, 5 to the north of Fowler Road Extension and 2 to the south of Fowler Road Extension. 

2.3 EXISTING CONDITIONS 

Table 1 provides a detailed description of the existing study area roadway network. All functional classification1 and 
average annual daily traffic (AADT)2 information were obtained from NCDOT. 

  D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  
September 10, 2024 

  2.5 
 

Table 1: Existing Conditions 

Road 
Name 

Road 
Number 

Primary 
Cross-
Section 

Functional 
Classification1 

AADT2 
(year) 

Speed 
Limit 
(mph) 

Maintenance 
Agency 

US 401 
Bypass 

US 401 4-Lane 
Divided 

Other Principal 
Arterial 

18,500 vpd 
(2021) 

55 NCDOT 

Young Street / 
Rolesville Road SR 1003 2-Lane 

Undivided Minor Arterial 
4,600-5,400 vpd 

(2021) 
45 NCDOT 

Quarry 
Road 

SR 2305 2-Lane 
Undivided Local Road 

1,000 vpd 
(2015) 

45 NCDOT 

Rolesville High 
School Driveway - 2-Lane 

Undivided - - - Private 

Fowler 
Road 

SR 2308 2-Lane 
Undivided Major Collector 

1,300 vpd 
(2021) 

45 NCDOT 

Mitchell Mill 
Road SR 2224 2-Lane 

Undivided Major Collector 
2,400 vpd 

(2021) 
45 NCDOT4- 

*TWLTL = Continuous Two-Way Left-Turn Lane 

The existing lane configuration and traffic control for the study area intersections are illustrated in Figure 3. 

2.4 FUTURE CONDITIONS 

The following sub-sections discuss the projects that are anticipated to modify the study area intersections between 
2024 and the future year 2028. The future year lane configuration and traffic control for the study area intersections 
are illustrated in Figure 4. 

2.4.1 Broadmoor (fka Woodlief Assemblage) 

The following improvements are currently proposed to be implemented in association with the development of the 
Broadmoor site: 

US 401 Bypass at Young Street 

• Extend the northbound right-turn lane from 250 feet of full-width storage to 600 feet of full-width storage and 
appropriate taper. 

• Restripe eastern Young Street U-turn location to provide a second eastbound U-turn Lane with 400 feet of full-
width storage and appropriate taper. 
 

Young Street at Rolesville HS Driveway / The Point South Driveway 
 
• Monitor the intersection for the installation of a traffic signal. When signalized, the westbound approach should 

be striped as an exclusive left-turn lane with a shared thru/right-turn storage lane to avoid the use of split-
phasing. 

• This report assumes that a traffic signal will be installed and operational in the future year of 2028. 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  
September 10, 2024 

  2.6 
 

A copy of the TIA is contained in the Appendix. The Broadmoor development is discussed in more detail in Section 
4.3.2 

2.4.2 The Point 

The following improvements are currently proposed to be implemented in association with the development of The 
Point: 

US 401 Bypass at Young Street 

• Extend the existing eastbound right-turn lane to 400 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

Young Street at Quarry Road / The Point North Driveway 

• Construct the North Driveway as a full-movement driveway onto Young Street across from Quarry Road. 
• Construct the North Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane with an exclusive eastbound left-turn 

lane with 275 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct a northbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct a northbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct a southbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Restripe the existing lane on westbound Quarry Road to a shared thru/left-turn lane. 
• Install a traffic signal at the intersection. 

Young Street at Rolesville High School Driveway / The Point South Driveway 

• Construct the South Driveway as a full-movement driveway onto Young Street across from the Rolesville High 
School Driveway. 

• Construct the North Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane. 
• Construct a northbound left-turn lane with 50 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

A copy of the TIA is contained in the Appendix. The Point development is discussed in more detail in Section 4.3.5. 

2.4.3 Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road 

Currently, several developments along the Young Street / Rolesville Road corridor have committed to monitoring the 
intersection of Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road for the installation of a traffic signal. When warranted, a traffic 
signal will be installed at the intersection. This report assumes that a traffic signal is installed and operational in the 
future year of 2028. 

 D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  
September 10, 2024 

  2.7 
 

Figure 3: 2024 Existing Lanes and Traffic Control 

  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  
September 10, 2024 

  2.8 
 

Figure 4: 2028 No-Build Lanes and Traffic Control 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Trip Generation and Distribution  
September 10, 2024 

  3.9 
 

3.0 TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION 

3.1 TRIP GENERATION 

Trip generation for the proposed development was performed using the 11th Edition of the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual3. The Rate Versus Equation spreadsheet published by NCDOT4 was used to 
supplement the ITE methodology. Trip generation for the proposed development is shown in Table 2. 

Internally captured trips are trips that begin and end on the project site and do not access the external roadway 
network. The NCHRP 684 Internal Trip Capture Estimation Tool was used to estimate the trips internally captured 
between the residential and retail uses within the Merritt Property development.  

Pass-by trips are trips already on the roadway network that will make a trip to the site as they pass by on the adjacent 
street. The ITE Trip Generation Manual indicates that 50% of the pharmacy PM trips will be pass-by traffic, with no 
pass-by allowance in the AM peak hour. 

Table 2: Trip Generation  

Land Use Size 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit 

Senior Adult Single-Family 
(LUC 251) 

227 Units 1189 595 594 72 24 48 84 51 33 

Senior Adult Multi-Family 
(LUC 252) 

278 Units 828 414 414 54 18 36 70 39 31 

Strip Retail Plaza 
(LUC 822) 

21,000 GFA 1116 558 558 47 28 19 132 66 66 

Pharmacy with Drive-Thru 
(LUC 881) 

15,000 GFA 1626 813 813 56 29 27 154 77 77 

Internal Capture Trips -15 -7 -8 -3 -1 -2 -12 -6 -6 

Pass-By Trips       -74 -37 -37 

Total Trips Generated 4744 2373 2371 226 98 128 354 190 164 

3.2 SITE TRIP DISTRIBUTION 

To accurately determine the effect of the proposed development on the surrounding roadway network, an estimate of 
the expected distribution of traffic entering and exiting the site is needed. These percentages were developed using a 
combination of existing traffic volume counts, historic AADTs provided by NCDOT, and engineering judgment. This 
trip distribution was submitted as part of NCDOT’s TIA Scoping Checklist contained in the Appendix. All traffic volume 
calculations can be found in the Appendix. 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Trip Generation and Distribution  
September 10, 2024 

  3.10 
 

• 30% to/from the west on US 401 Bypass 
• 15% to/from the north on Young Street 
• 15% to/from the east on US 401 Bypass 
• 15% to/from the west on Mitchell Mill Road 
• 10% to/from the east on Fowler Road 
• 10% to/from the south on Rolesville Road 
• 5% to/from the east on Quarry Road 

The trip distribution for the proposed development is shown in Figure 5. The trip assignment is shown in Figure 6. 
The pass-by distribution and assignment for the proposed development is shown in Figure 7 and Figure 8.  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Trip Generation and Distribution  
September 10, 2024 

  3.11 
 

Figure 5: Trip Distribution 

  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Trip Generation and Distribution  
September 10, 2024 

  3.12 
 

Figure 6: Trip Assignment 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Trip Generation and Distribution  
September 10, 2024 

  3.13 
 

Figure 7: Pass-By Distribution 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Trip Generation and Distribution  
September 10, 2024 

  3.14 
 

Figure 8: Pass-By Assignment 

 D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  
September 10, 2024 

  4.15 
 

4.0 TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

All traffic volume calculations can be found in the Appendix. 

4.1 DATA COLLECTION 

Morning (6:30 – 9:00 AM) and evening (4:00 – 6:00 PM) turning movement counts were taken at the study 
intersections on Thursday, June 1, 2023, while schools were in session. Traffic counts were not balanced due to the 
distance between study intersections and the number of driveways between them. All traffic count data can be found 
in the appendix.  

4.2 BACKGROUND TRAFFIC GROWTH 

Background traffic growth is the increase in traffic volumes due to usage growth and non-specific growth throughout 
the area. The 2023 counts were grown by a 2.0 percent annual rate to estimate the 2024 and 2028 volumes. The 
2024 existing traffic volumes is shown in Figure 9. The growth in vehicles because of this future traffic growth is 
shown in Figure 10. 

4.3 ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC 

There are seven (7) developments proposed to be constructed within and nearby the study area: 1216 Rolesville 
Road, Broadmoor, Kalas Falls, Rolesville Crossing, The Point, The Preserve at Moody Farm, and Tucker-Wilkins. 
The total trips associated with these developments are shown in Figure 11. The following subsections highlight 
salient data for each of the approved developments. 

4.3.1 1216 Rolesville Road 

1216 Rolesville Road is a mixed-use development project located along the west side of Rolesville Road between 
Rolesville High School and Fowler Road. The proposed development is expected to consist of 68 units of single-
family attached housing and 30,000 square feet of retail. The development is anticipated to be fully built-out by 2028. 
A copy of the traffic study prepared by Ramey Kemp Associates, can be found in the Appendix. 

4.3.2 Broadmoor (fka Woodlief Assemblage) 

Broadmoor is a residential development project located along the east side of Rolesville Road between Fowler Road 
and Mitchell Mill Road. The proposed development is expected to consist of 158 units of single-family detached 
housing and 95 units of multifamily housing. The development is anticipated to be fully built-out by 2028. The 
improvements associated with the Broadmoor development are discussed in Section 2.4.1. A copy of the traffic study 
prepared by Stantec, can be found in the Appendix. 

4.3.3 Kalas Falls 

Kalas Falls is a residential development project located along the west side of Rolesville Road between Fowler Road 
and Mitchell Mill Road. The proposed development is expected to consist of 487 units of single-family detached 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  
September 10, 2024 

  4.16 
 

housing and 108 units of low-rise multifamily housing. The development is anticipated to be fully built-out by 2025. A 
copy of the traffic study prepared by Stantec, can be found in the Appendix. 

4.3.4 Rolesville Crossing 

Rolesville Crossing is a residential development project located in the northeast quadrant of the intersection of 
Rolesville Road and Mitchell Mill Road. The proposed development is expected to consist of 233 units of single-family 
detached housing and 125 units of low-rise multifamily housing. The development is anticipated to be fully built-out by 
2026. A copy of the traffic study prepared by Ramey Kemp & Associates, Inc., can be found in the Appendix. 

4.3.5 The Point 

The Point is a proposed mixed-use development project located along the west side of Young Street near the US 401 
Bypass. The proposed development is expected to consist of up to 621 units of single-family detached housing, 320 
units of low-rise multifamily housing, and 112,800 square-feet of retail space. The development is expected to be built 
in phases and is estimated to be fully built-out by 2025. The improvements associated with The Point development 
are discussed in Section 2.4.2. A copy of the traffic study prepared by Kimley-Horn and Associates, can be found in 
the Appendix. 

4.3.6 The Preserve at Moody Farm 

Moody Farm is a residential development project located along the west side of Rolesville Road between Fowler 
Road and Mitchell Mill Road. The proposed development is expected to consist of 82 units of single-family detached 
housing. The development is anticipated to be fully built-out by 2028. A copy of the traffic study prepared by Stantec, 
can be found in the Appendix. 

4.3.7 Tucker-Wilkins 

The Tucker-Wilkins property is a residential development project located along the west side of Rolesville Road 
between Fowler Road and Mitchell Mill Road. The proposed development is expected to consist of 27 units of single-
family detached housing and 64 units of low-rise multifamily housing. The development is anticipated to be fully built-
out by 2028. A copy of the traffic study prepared by Stantec, can be found in the Appendix. 

4.4 NO-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

The 2028 No-Build traffic volumes consist of the sum of the 2024 Existing traffic volumes (Figure 9), the Background 
traffic growth (Figure 10), and the adjacent development growth (Figure 11). The 2028 No-Build traffic volumes are 
shown in Figure 12. 

4.5 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

The 2028 Build traffic volumes include the 2028 No-Build traffic and the proposed development traffic discussed in 
Section 3.0. The 2028 Build traffic volumes are shown in Figure 13. 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  
September 10, 2024 

  4.17 
 

Figure 9: 2024 Existing Traffic Volumes 

  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  
September 10, 2024 

  4.18 
 

Figure 10: Background Traffic Growth 

  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  
September 10, 2024 

  4.19 
 

Figure 11: Adjacent Development Traffic Volumes 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  
September 10, 2024 

  4.20 
 

Figure 12: 2028 No-Build Traffic Volumes 

  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  
September 10, 2024 

  4.21 
 

Figure 13: 2028 Build Traffic Volumes 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

  5.22 
 

5.0 CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

Capacity analyses were performed for the roadway network in the study area. The traffic analysis program Synchro 
Version 11 was used to analyze all signalized and stop-controlled intersections according to methods put forth by the 
Transportation Research Board’s Highway Capacity Manual6 (HCM). The HCM defines capacity as the “maximum 
rate or flow at which persons or vehicles can be reasonably expected to traverse a point or uniform section of a line 
or roadway during a specified period under prevailing roadway, traffic, and control conditions, usually expressed as 
vehicles per lane per hour.” 

Level of service (LOS) is a term used to describe different traffic conditions and is defined as a “qualitative measure 
describing operational conditions within a traffic stream, and their perception by motorists or passengers.” LOS varies 
from Level A, representing free flow, to Level F where traffic breakdown conditions are evident. At an unsignalized 
intersection, the primary traffic on the main roadway is uninterrupted. Therefore, the overall delay for the intersection 
is usually less than what is calculated for minor street movements. The overall intersection delay and the delay for the 
intersections’ minor movement(s) are reported in the summary tables of this report. LOS D is acceptable for 
signalized intersections in suburban areas during peak periods. For unsignalized intersections, it is common for some 
of the minor street movements or approaches to be operating at LOS F during peak hour conditions and that is not 
necessarily indicative of an area that requires improvements. 

Capacity analyses were completed following NCDOT Capacity Analysis Guidelines6 as well as the Draft NCDOT 
Capacity Analysis Guidelines Best Practices7. Table 3 presents the criteria of each LOS as indicated in the HCM. 

Table 3: Level of Service Criteria 

Level of Service 
(LOS) 

Signalized Intersection 
Control Delay 

(seconds/vehicle) 

Unsignalized Intersection 
Control Delay 

(seconds/vehicle) 
A ≤ 10 ≤ 10 

B >10 and ≤ 20 >10 and ≤ 15 

C >20 and ≤ 35 >15 and ≤ 25 

D >35 and ≤ 55 >25 and ≤ 35 

E >55 and ≤ 80 >35 and ≤ 50 

F >80 >50 

The Town of Rolesville’s Land Development Ordinance (LDO)8, Section 8.E, establishes the following Level of Service 
Standards: 

1. The traffic impact analysis must demonstrate that the proposed development would not cause 
build-out-year, peak-hour levels of service on any arterial or collector road or intersection within the 
study area to fall below Level of Service (LOS) "D," as defined by the latest edition of the Highway 
Capacity Manual, or, where the existing level of service is already LOS "E" that the proposed 
development would not cause the LOS to fall to the next lower letter grade. 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

  5.23 
 

2. If the road segment or intersection is already LOS "F," the traffic impact analysis must demonstrate 
that the proposed development, with any proposed improvements, would not cause build-out year 
peak-hour operation to degrade more than five (5) percent of the total delay on any intersection 
approach. 

All Synchro files and detailed printouts can be found in the Appendix. 

  

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

  5.24 
 

5.1 2024 EXISTING 

In the base year, under the existing geometric conditions, the westbound left-turn from Quarry Road and the 
westbound left-turn from Rolesville High School onto Rolesville Road operate at LOS F in the AM peak hour. The 
remaining study area intersections and movements operate at an acceptable level in both peak hours. The results 
from the 2024 Existing analysis are shown in Table 4. Instances where the overall intersection or lane group operate 
at LOS F are highlighted in the table. 

Table 4: 2024 Existing Level of Service and Delay 

Intersection Approach Lane 
Group 

Delay  
(sec./veh.) 

Level of 
Service 
(LOS) 

95th % 
Queue 
(feet) 

Max. Obs. 
Queue 
(feet) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

 

US 401 Bypass 
Eastbound at 
Young Street 

Overall 9.3 6.9 A A     

EB 
T 6.8 3.6 A A 62 147 100 132 
R 1.0 0.3 A A 3 0 185 45 

NB R 21.8 24.7 C C 128 98 322 219 
WB L 0.1 0.1 A A 0 0 165 140 

 

US 401 Bypass 
Westbound at 
Young Street 

Overall 13.2 7.8 B A     

WB 
T 9.8 2.3 A A 314 42 235 127 
R 0.3 0.2 A A 0 0 0 24 

EB L 0.1 0.2 A A 0 0 105 178 
SB R 32.2 23.4 C C 182 107 346 252 

 

US 401 U-Turn 
East of Young 

Street 

Overall 3.2 2.5 A A     
WB T 4.2 3.2 A A 137 44 255 68 
EB U 0.4 0.9 A A 0 11 391 118 

 

US 401 U-Turn 
West of Young 

Street 

Overall 2.3 3.7 A A     
EB T 3.3 4.4 A A 51 105 64 124 
WB U 0.2 0.8 A A 0 11 132 227 

 
Young Street at 

Quarry Road 
WB 

L 51.1 18.7 F C 23 5 41 20 
R 12.5 10.2 B B 20 8 42 25 

SB L 8.9 8.1 A A 15 8 95 54 

 
Rolesville Road 
at Rolesville HS 

Driveway 

WB 
L 95 14.9 F B 145 3 121 35 
R 11.3 9.9 B A 30 3 107 40 

SB L 8.7 7.9 A A 28 3 98 34 

 
Rolesville Road 
at Fowler Road 

WB LR 11.8 10.6 B B 13 10 48 39 
SB LT 8.2 8.0 A A 3 5 64 73 

 
Rolesville Road 
at Mitchell Mill 

Road 

NB LTR 15.7 13.8 C B 65 73 130 104 
EB LTR 13.6 12.4 B B 35 40 106 98 

WB 
LT 24 11.1 C B 133 15 264 64 
R 9 8.8 A A 3 3 45 0 

SB LTR 18.2 13.2 C B 98 60 261 145 
*Maximum queue extends off the SimTraffic network and may be longer than recorded 

Intersection of Lane Group Operates at LOS F 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

  5.25 
 

5.2 2028 NO-BUILD 

In the 2028 No-Build conditions, the analysis assumes the improvements associated with the adjacent developments 
and NCDOT projects are constructed. These improvements, discussed in Section 2.4, are listed below: 

US 401 Bypass at Young Street 

• Extend the existing eastbound right-turn lane to 400 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Extend the northbound right-turn lane from 250 feet of full-width storage to 600 feet of full-width storage and 

appropriate taper. 
• Restripe the eastern Young Street U-turn location to provide a second eastbound U-turn Lane with 400 feet of 

full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

Young Street at Quarry Road / The Point North Driveway 

• Construct the North Driveway as a full-movement driveway onto Young Street across from Quarry Road. 
• Construct the North Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane with an exclusive eastbound left-turn 

lane with 275 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct a northbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct a northbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct a southbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Restripe the existing lane on westbound Quarry Road to a shared thru/left-turn lane. 
• Install a traffic signal at the intersection. 

Young Street at Rolesville High School Driveway / The Point South Driveway 

• Construct the South Driveway as a full-movement driveway onto Young Street across from the Rolesville High 
School Driveway. 

• Construct the North Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane. 
• Construct a northbound left-turn lane with 50 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Install a traffic signal at this intersection. 
• Restripe westbound approach as an exclusive left-turn lane with a shared thru/right-turn storage lane to avoid the 

use of split-phasing. 

Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road 

• Install a traffic signal at the intersection. 

Synchro LOS and delay results for the 2028 No-Build analysis scenario are listed in Table 5. Instances where the 
overall intersection or lane group operate at LOS E or F are highlighted in the table.  

In the future year of 2028 without the proposed development in-place, all signalized intersections in the study area 
operate at acceptable overall LOS.  

Observation of the simulation runs showed lengthy queues along northbound Rolesville Road/Young Street in the AM 
peak hour and southbound Rolesville Road/Young Street in the PM peak hour. This leads to several side street 
approaches operating at LOS E or F, such as the westbound Fowler Road approach and the eastbound left turn 
movement from the Point North Driveway which operates at LOS F in both peak hours.  

In addition to the above discussed locations, the following movements also operate at LOS F in the AM and/or PM 
peak hours: 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

  5.26 
 

• Rolesville Road & Rolesville High School Driveway – westbound thru-right (AM Peak) 
• Rolesville Road & Mitchell Mill Road – eastbound left-thru-right (AM Peak) 

 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

  5.27 
 

Table 5: 2028 No-Build Level of Service and Delay 

Intersection Approach Lane 
Group 

Delay  
(sec./veh.) 

Level of Service 
(LOS) 

95th % Queue 
(feet) 

Max. Obs. Queue 
(feet) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

 

US 401 Bypass 
Eastbound at Young 

Street 

Overall 9.1 12.0 A B     

EB 
T 39.3 17.4 D B 150 247 685 864 
R 3.6 6.3 A A 211 450 348 348 

NB R 6.4 17.9 A B 160 275 880 749 
WB L 0.1 0.2 A A 0 0 202 254 

 

US 401 Bypass 
Westbound at Young 

Street 

Overall 20.4 9.6 C A      

WB 
T 17.6 8.7 B A 518 114 647 410 
R 0.3 0.4 A A 0 0 272 257 

EB L 0.1 0.2 A A 0 0 128 147 
SB R 47.1 20.7 D C 328 150 712 1050* 

 

US 401 U-Turn East of 
Young Street 

Overall 29.9 15.2 C B      
WB T 25.5 11.9 C B 521 166 697 216 
EB L 36.6 19.1 D B 408 141 408 286 

 

US 401 U-Turn West of 
Young Street 

Overall 3.1 4.1 A A      
EB T 4.3 5.2 A A 145 244 227 1086* 
WB U 0.3 0.5 A A 0 0 318 554 

 

Young Street at Quarry 
Road / The Point North 

Driveway 

Overall 23.5 25.9 C C      

EB 
L 90.3 81.3 F F 265 244 264 241 

TR 50.2 46.1 D D 130 153 218 205 

WB 
LT 46.7 44.1 D D 68 82 82 127 
R 30.7 18.3 C B 134 53 137 52 

NB 
L 46.0 50.2 D D 11 73 112 200 
T 14.8 14.6 B B 633 101 742 653 
R 1.2 6.7 A A 4 11 199 200 

SB 
L 77.5 31.8 E C 273 83 536 177 
T 7.0 24.5 A C 323 800 675 604 
R 3.7 9.0 A A 52 162 200 200 

 

Rolesville Road at 
Rolesville HS Driveway 

/ The Point South 
Driveway 

Overall 37.4 6.2 D A      
EB LTR 41.2 39.7 D D 47 38 72 53 

WB 
L 53.3 38.1 D D 166 23 180 51 

TR 80.4 39.9 F D 337 44 291 73 

NB 
L 14.8 5.2 B A 5 2 51 44 
T 40.4 5.9 D A 718 181 1190 276 
R 18.5 4.4 B A 161 19 500 0 

SB 
L 63.3 45.0 E D 436 26 431 69 

TR 7.6 3.3 A A 253 2 641 272 

 
Rolesville Road at 

Fowler Road 
WB LR 104.8 ## F F 130 383 163 176 
SB LT 10.4 9.6 B A 5 10 523 378 

 

Rolesville Road at 
Mitchell Mill Road 

Overall 41.2 21.0 D C      
EB LTR 91.7 41.6 F D 319 305 406 335 

WB 
LT 36.0 23.7 D C 378 101 346 162 
R 20.4 19.8 C B 24 30 0 0 

NB LTR 18.0 16.9 B B 233 352 976* 715* 
SB LTR 41.1 12.4 D B 864 361 1779 976 

*Maximum queue extends off the SimTraffic network and may be longer than recorded 
                                                                              ##          Delay exceeds 300 seconds 

Intersection or Lane Group Operates at LOS E 
Intersection of Lane Group Operates at LOS F 

 

 D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

5.28 

5.3 2028 BUILD 

As part of the 2028 Build analysis, the proposed driveways were added to the network as detailed in Section 2.2. 

With the proposed development in-place, the operations of the Young Street/Rolesville Road corridor remain mostly 
the same as the 2028 No-Build conditions with significant queues along Young Street & Rolesville Road in the 
northbound direction during the AM peak hour and southbound direction during the PM peak hour. 

While the Synchro results showed that the US 401 Bypass eastbound intersections operated at LOS A and B, the 
SimTraffic simulation runs showed significant queuing stemming from the yield-controlled eastbound right-turn 
movement at the US 401 Bypass Eastbound & Young Street intersection. While the movement is yield controlled, the 
combination of the added development traffic and having to yield to the westbound left-turn movement prevents the 
movement from operating at its greatest capacity, especially in the PM peak hour. In the 2028 No-Build scenario, the 
US 401 Bypass Eastbound queue from this movement extended off the network (~1000’ west of the Western U-Turn 
intersection) 31% of the PM peak hour. In the 2028 Build scenario, this spillback queue extended off the network 
during 61% of the PM peak hour. 

The Merritt Property Driveway approach to Rolesville Road operates at LOS F in the AM peak hour. The eastbound 
and westbound approaches of the Rolesville Road & Fowler Road intersection operate at LOS F in both peak hours. 

The westbound shared through-right-turn lane of the Young Street & Rolesville High School driveway intersection 
now operates at LOS F in the AM peak hour. 

Synchro LOS and delay results for the 2028 Build scenario are listed in Table 6. Instances where the overall 
intersection or lane group operate at LOS E or F are highlighted in the table. 

D R
A F

T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

  5.29 
 

Table 6: 2028 Build Level of Service and Delay 

Intersection Approach Lane 
Group 

Delay  
(sec./veh.) 

Level of Service 
(LOS) 

95th % Queue 
(feet) 

Max. Obs. Queue 
(feet) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

 

US 401 Bypass 
Eastbound at Young 

Street 

Overall 8.9 13.7 A B     

EB 
T 42.5 21.4 D C 141 275 824 870 
R 4.3 9.1 A A 263 512 348 348 

NB R 5.3 16.7 A B 152 262 881 737 
WB L 0.2 0.2 A A 0 0 195 272 

 

US 401 Bypass 
Westbound at Young 

Street 

Overall 22.1 9.7 C A      

WB 
T 18.8 9.0 B A 578 116 764 622 
R 0.3 0.4 A A 0 0 275 271 

EB L 0.1 0.2 A A 0 0 139 127 
SB R 52.0 20.8 D C 369 159 715 1051* 

 

US 401 U-Turn East of 
Young Street 

Overall 33.8 15.8 C B      
WB T 28.4 12.9 C B 588 173 769 313 
EB L 41.5 19.0 D B 475 162 427 297 

 

US 401 U-Turn West of 
Young Street 

Overall 3.1 4.4 A A      
EB T 4.4 5.5 A A 150 271 686* 1103* 
WB U 0.4 0.5 A A 0 0 460 556 

 

Young Street at Quarry 
Road / The Point North 

Driveway 

Overall 27.0 32.5 C C      

EB 
L 113.9 134.4 F F 274 254 308 261 

TR 53.1 55.1 D E 132 164 397 307 

WB 
LT 50.2 58.4 D E 76 109 113 176 
R 32.6 21.5 C C 138 56 180 48 

NB 
L 45.3 56.3 D E 12 64 96 199 
T 18.1 11.1 B B 669 93 823 704 
R 1.0 5.4 A A 4 9 199 200 

SB 
L 92.3 36.8 F D 283 81 540 162 
T 7.6 33.4 A C 417 950 907 693 
R 3.8 8.5 A A 59 152 200 200 

 

Rolesville Road at 
Rolesville HS Driveway 

/ The Point South 
Driveway 

Overall 43.0 7.0 D A      
EB LTR 42.9 40.1 D D 48 38 92 68 

WB 
L 56.5 38.5 E D 179 23 375 48 

TR 93.5 40.3 F D 348 44 317 76 

NB 
L 12.8 5.6 B A 5 2 69 80 
T 48.1 7.1 D A 807 248 1130 302 
R 16.8 4.4 B A 153 20 500 0 

SB 
L 79.4 46.5 E D 464 23 441 66 

TR 8.8 4.2 A A 336 24 1328 642 

 
Rolesville Road at 

Merritt Property 
Driveway 

NB LT 10.4 21.4 B C 0 5 240 286 

EB LR ## 33.4 F D 148 30 167 164 

 
Rolesville Road at 

Fowler Road 

NB LTR 10.0 15.2 B C 3 13 1592 581 
EB LTR ## ## F F 368 ** 463 1048* 
WB LTR ## ## F F 410 ** 482 666 
SB LTR 10.4 9.6 B A 5 10 432 434 

 

Rolesville Road at 
Mitchell Mill Road 

Overall 48.0 23.6 D C      
EB LTR 95.8 45.3 F D 344 374 470 389 

WB 
LT 34.9 23.0 C C 379 100 388 129 
R 20.4 19.6 C B 24 30 0 0 

NB LTR 18.7 18.3 B B 242 370 967* 893* 
SB LTR 54.7 15.8 D B 913 421 1938 1058 

 
*Maximum queue extends off the SimTraffic network and may be longer than recorded 

**95th Percentile Queue Was Not Noted By Synchro 
                                                                             ##            Delay exceeds 300 seconds 

Intersection or Lane Group Operates at LOS E 
Intersection of Lane Group Operates at LOS F 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

   5.30 
 

5.4 2028 BUILD IMPROVED 

5.4.1 Proposed Improvements 

The 2028 Build Improved capacity analysis results are shown in Table 7. Instances where the overall intersection or 
lane group operate at LOS E or F are highlighted in the table. Based on the findings of this study, specific 
improvements have been identified and should be completed as part of the proposed development. 

Averette Road, Young Street, and Rolesville Road Corridor Study 

It is recommended that the applicant coordinate their site plan and improvements with the findings of the Averette 
Road, Young Street, and Rolesville Road Corridor Study to ensure consistency with future addendums to the 
Community Transportation Plan. 

US 401 Bypass at Young Street 

• Modify the eastbound right-turn such that the movement is a free-flowing right-turn from the US 401 Bypass 
onto southbound Young Street. This recommendation will require the following: 

o Removal of the existing yield sign and new signing and striping installed. 
o A second southbound travel lane be constructed on Young Street from the US 401 Bypass 

southward to Quarry Road. This lane is recommended to tie into the exclusive right-turn lane into 
The Point development. 

In the SimTraffic simulation runs, the traffic from the proposed development causes the eastbound queue from the 
US 401 Bypass intersection with Young Street to extend greater than 1700’ during 61% of the PM peak hour, which is 
an increase from only 31% of the PM peak hour in the 2028 No-Build scenario. Converting the eastbound right-turn 
movement to a free-flow right turn instead of the current yield-controlled movement would mitigate this. With this 
change implemented, the maximum SimTraffic queue of the eastbound queue is 410’ in the PM peak hour. 

As a result of the eastbound right-turn movement being a free-flow movement, we would recommend that the 
proposed 100’ southbound right-turn lane at the Young Street & Quarry Road intersection be extended back to 
connect with this free-flow movement. 

Young Street at Quarry Road / The Point North Driveway 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection. 

Young Street at Rolesville HS Driveway / The Point South Driveway 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection. 

Rolesville Road at Merritt Property Driveway 

• Construct the northernmost driveway as a right-in / right-out access point with one ingress lane and one 
egress lane. 

• Construct an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

   5.31 
 

In the Build scenario, the Merritt Property Driveway approach operates at LOS F in the AM peak hour with delays 
exceeding 300 seconds. With the elimination of left turns in and out of the intersection (with vehicles being redirected 
to the Rolesville Road & Fowler Road signalized intersection) as well as the southbound right-turn lane, the driveway 
approach operates at LOS C in the AM peak hour and LOS D in the PM peak hour. 

Rolesville Road at Fowler Road 

• Extend Fowler Road from its current terminus at Rolesville Road to the west as shown on the site plan. 
• Modify the existing intersection to provide full-movement access from eastbound Fowler Road onto 

Rolesville Road. 
• Provide adequate sight distance for the eastbound approach of Fowler Road at the intersection. 
• Provide signing and striping such that the intersection operates as a two-way stop-controlled intersection. 

However, the intersection is recommended to be evaluated against the warrants for the installation of a 
traffic signal as outlined in the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. If warranted and approved by 
NCDOT, a traffic signal is recommended to be installed at the intersection. 

• Construct an exclusive southbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct an exclusive northbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

With the Fowler Road approaches having delays exceeding 300 seconds in the Build scenario, a signal was analyzed 
in the Build Improved scenario. With the addition of the signal, the intersection operates at an overall LOS B in the 
AM peak hour and LOS B in the PM peak hours. It is recommended to monitor this intersection for future 
signalization. 

Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection. 
 
 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Capacity Analysis  
September 10, 2024 

   5.32 
 

Table 7: 2028 Build Improved Level of Service and Delay 

Intersection Approach Lane 
Group 

Delay  
(sec./veh.) 

Level of Service 
(LOS) 

95th % Queue 
(feet) 

Max. Obs. Queue 
(feet) 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

 

US 401 Bypass 
Eastbound at Young 

Street 

Overall 9.1 13.5 A B     

EB 
T 42.5 20.9 D C 147 275 186 410 
R 4.3 9.1 A A 263 772 103 346 

NB R 5.6 16.3 A B 151 275 1019 1007 
WB L 0.2 0.2 A A 0 0 205 244 

 

US 401 Bypass 
Westbound at Young 

Street 

Overall 22.1 9.7 C A      

WB 
T 18.7 9.0 B A 578 116 752 203 
R 0.3 0.4 A A 0 0 251 225 

EB L 0.1 0.2 A A 0 0 122 186 
SB R 52.0 20.8 D C 369 159 844 574 

 

US 401 U-Turn East of 
Young Street 

Overall 33.8 15.8 C B      
WB T 28.6 12.9 C B 588 173 838 249 
EB L 41.2 19.0 D B 475 162 444 321 

 

US 401 U-Turn West of 
Young Street 

Overall 3.1 4.4 A A      
EB T 4.4 5.5 A A 150 271 244 736 
WB U 0.4 0.5 A A 0 0 362 558 

 

Young Street at Quarry 
Road / The Point North 

Driveway 

Overall 27.6 32.1 C C      

EB 
L 84.8 134.4 F F 256 254 279 273 

TR 48.8 55.1 D E 129 164 231 258 

WB 
LT 46.5 58.4 D E 74 109 96 115 
R 31.0 21.5 C C 134 56 127 48 

NB 
L 58.1 55.8 E E 9 64 165 200 
T 23.6 9.4 C A 708 76 814 728 
R 2.0 4.1 A A 6 8 200 200 

SB 
L 99.3 36.8 F D 283 81 419 576 
T 8.2 33.9 A C 480 950 692 1075 
R 3.4 8.5 A A 46 152 455 937 

 

Rolesville Road at 
Rolesville HS Driveway 

/ The Point South 
Driveway 

Overall 41.3 6.8 D A      
EB LTR 42.9 40.1 D D 48 38 71 60 

WB 
L 56.5 38.5 E D 179 23 190 49 

TR 93.5 40.3 F D 348 44 353 66 

NB 
L 14.8 2.6 B A 2 1 86 31 
T 43.7 6.9 D A 852 468 1297 285 
R 16.2 2.1 B A 120 12 500 0 

SB 
L 80.5 46.5 F D 464 23 441 74 

TR 7.3 4.2 A A 99 24 1012 298 

 
Rolesville Road at 

Merritt Property 
Driveway 

EB R 13.0 25.8 B D 3 8 20 29 

 

Rolesville Road at 
Fowler Road 

Overall 21.2 19.4 C B     
EB LTR 69.1 53.9 E D 174 217 165 233 
WB LTR 49.1 34.0 D C 137 119 157 153 

NB 
L 9.5 20.9 A C 16 39 135 199 

TR 22.1 18.4 C B 742 322 750 576 

SB 
L 50.0 50.9 D D 60 77 153 192 
T 7.4 9.0 A A 295 336 397 407 
R 4.3 2.8 A A 12 8 135 187 

 

Rolesville Road at 
Mitchell Mill Road 

Overall 48.4 23.3 D C      
EB LTR 95.8 45.3 F D 344 374 478 374 

WB 
LT 34.9 23.0 C C 379 100 347 160 
R 20.4 19.6 C B 24 30 0 0 

NB LTR 18.7 18.3 B B 242 370 995* 947* 
SB LTR 55.6 15.0 E B 912 359 2714 1845 

*Maximum queue extends off the SimTraffic network and may be longer than recorded 
Intersection or Lane Group Operates at LOS E 
Intersection of Lane Group Operates at LOS F 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Recommendations  
September 10, 2024 

   6.33 
 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

Based on the findings of this study, specific improvements have been identified and should be completed as part of 
the proposed development. Intersections where no improvements are recommended are locations that do not meet 
the LOS Standards specified in the LDO8. These recommendations are shown in Figure 14. 

Averette Road, Young Street, and Rolesville Road Corridor Study 

It is recommended that the applicant coordinate their site plan and improvements with the findings of the Averette 
Road, Young Street, and Rolesville Road Corridor Study to ensure consistency with future addendums to the 
Community Transportation Plan. 

US 401 Bypass at Young Street 

• Modify the eastbound right-turn such that the movement is a free-flowing right-turn from the US 401 Bypass 
onto southbound Young Street. This recommendation will require the following: 

o Removal of the existing yield sign and new signing and striping installed. 
o A second southbound travel lane be constructed on Young Street from the US 401 Bypass 

southward to Quarry Road. This lane is recommended to tie into the exclusive right-turn lane into 
The Point development. 

Young Street at Quarry Road / The Point North Driveway 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection. 

Young Street at Rolesville HS Driveway / The Point South Driveway 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection. 

Rolesville Road at Merritt Property Driveway 

• Construct the northernmost driveway as a right-in / right-out access point with one ingress lane and one 
egress lane. 

• Construct an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

Rolesville Road at Fowler Road 

• Extend Fowler Road from its current terminus at Rolesville Road to the west as shown on the site plan. 
• Modify the existing intersection to provide full-movement access from eastbound Fowler Road onto 

Rolesville Road. 
• Provide adequate sight distance for the eastbound approach of Fowler Road at the intersection. 
• Provide signing and striping such that the intersection operates as a two-way stop-controlled intersection. 

However, the intersection is recommended to be evaluated against the warrants for the installation of a 
traffic signal as outlined in the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. If warranted and approved by 
NCDOT, a traffic signal is recommended to be installed at the intersection. 

• Construct an exclusive southbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 
• Construct an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Recommendations  
September 10, 2024 

   6.34 
 

• Construct an exclusive northbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper. 

Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection.

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Recommendations  
September 10, 2024 

  6.35 
 

Figure 14: Recommended Improvements 

 

D R
 A F T



REZ 24-01: MERRITT PROPERTY TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

References  
September 10, 2024 

  8.36 
 

7.0 REFERENCES 

1 NCDOT Functional Classification Map, 
http://ncdot.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html?layers=029a9a9fe26e43d687d30cd3c08b1792 

2 2020 NCDOT Average Daily Traffic Volumes,  
https://ncdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=964881960f0549de8c3583bf46ef5ed4 

3 Trip Generation (11th Edition), Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), September 2021. 

4 NCDOT Trip Generation Rate Equation Recommendations,  
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/DRAFT%20-
%20Trip%20Generation%20Rate%20Eqn.xlsm 

5 Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition: A Guide for Multimodal Mobility Analysis. Washington D.C.: 
Transportation Research Board, 2016. 

6 NCDOT Capacity Analysis Guidelines. North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT), March 2022, 
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/Standards%20-
%20Capacity%20Analysis%20Guidelines.pdf 

7 Draft NCDOT Capacity Analysis Guidelines: Best Practices. North Carolina Department of Transportation 
(NCDOT), March 2022, 
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/Best%20Practices%20-
%20Capacity%20Analysis%20Guidelines.pdf 

8 Land Development Ordinance. Town of Rolesville, June 1, 2021,  
https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/code-ordinances 

8.0 APPENDIX 

• Scoping Correspondence 
• Site Plan 
• Raw Traffic Count Data 
• Adjacent Development Information 
• Traffic Volume Calculations 
• Synchro Files 
• Synchro & SimTraffic Reports 

D R
 A F T

https://ncdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=964881960f0549de8c3583bf46ef5ed4
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/DRAFT%20-%20Trip%20Generation%20Rate%20Eqn.xlsm
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/DRAFT%20-%20Trip%20Generation%20Rate%20Eqn.xlsm
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/Standards%20-%20Capacity%20Analysis%20Guidelines.pdf
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/Standards%20-%20Capacity%20Analysis%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/code-ordinances


 CMP Professional Land Surveyors 

Michael A. Moss, PLS L-3794                                                   Telephone (919) 556-3148 

Jason L. Panciera, PLS L-3835, CFSNC-140                              

L. Jordan Parker Jr., PLS L-4685  

333 South White Street, Post Office Box 1253 

Wake Forest, NC  27588-1253 

 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

 
BEGINNING AT A NEW IRON PIPE, SAID NEW IRON PIPE HAVING NC GRID NAD 83/2011 COORDINATE  
N(y): 783309.27’ E(x): 2164159.73’, SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING LOCATED ON THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF-
WAY OF ROLESVILLE ROAD (S.R.#1003), SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING THE COMMON FRONT CORNER OF 
PARCEL PIN# 1768.03-33-7689 AND SUBJECT PARCEL; THENCE ALONG ROLESVILLE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY  
S 06°55'13"E A DISTANCE OF 384.56' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°12'17"E A DISTANCE OF 100.22' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 07°09'39"E A DISTANCE OF 100.17' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°53'34"E A DISTANCE OF 
100.14' TO A POINT; THENCE S 08°05'58"E A DISTANCE OF 226.00' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°02'42"E A 
DISTANCE OF 8.65' TO A POINT; THENCE N 79°37'37"W A DISTANCE OF 135.63' TO A POINT; THENCE 
WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 405.68', WITH A RADIUS OF 1,180.00', 
WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 69°46'41"W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 403.68',; TO A POINT; THENCE  
N 59°55'45"W A DISTANCE OF 7.64' TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN 
ARC LENGTH OF 264.63', WITH A RADIUS OF 700.00', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 70°45'33"W, WITH A 
CHORD LENGTH OF 263.06', TO A POINT; THENCE S 03°01'29"E A DISTANCE OF 127.16’ TO AN EXISTING 
IRON PIPE; THENCE S 86°15'26"W A DISTANCE OF 1,907.10' TO AN AXLE;I I  THENCE S 02°38'01"W A 
DISTANCE OF 41.66' TO A POINT; THENCE S 86°36'19"W A DISTANCE OF 80.15' TO A POINT; THENCE  
N 35°30'42"W A DISTANCE OF 25.71' TO A POINT; THENCE N 18°40'09"W A DISTANCE OF 18.02' TO A 
POINT; THENCE N 16°33'18"E A DISTANCE OF 29.75' TO A POINT; THENCE S 65°55'14"W A DISTANCE OF 
41.93' TO A POINT; THENCE N 34°33'28"W A DISTANCE OF 67.60' TO A POINT; THENCE N 63°56'22"W A 
DISTANCE OF 58.64' TO A POINT; THENCE S 12°10'41"E A DISTANCE OF 28.75' TO A POINT; THENCE  
S 62°16'28"W A DISTANCE OF 40.10' TO A POINT; THENCE N 48°52'56"W A DISTANCE OF 41.03' TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 66°34'20"W A DISTANCE OF 183.88' TO A POINT; THENCE S 42°14'08"W A DISTANCE OF 
280.13' TO A POINT; THENCE S 10°05'45"E A DISTANCE OF 34.24' TO A POINT; THENCE S 66°32'41"W A 
DISTANCE OF 69.18' TO A POINT; THENCE S 67°17'00"W A DISTANCE OF 140.16' TO A POINT; THENCE S 
72°23'53"W A DISTANCE OF 370.65' TO A POINT; THENCE S 89°38'01"W A DISTANCE OF 175.48' TO A 
POINT; THENCE N 03°38'40"W A DISTANCE OF 93.43' TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE S 89°04'03"W A 
DISTANCE OF 186.00’ TO A NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE N 00°20'34" W A DISTANCE OF 1,150.25’ TO A NEW 
IRON PIPE; THENCE N 88°47'41"E A DISTANCE OF 1,587.76' TO AN EXISTING MASON NAIL IN A STONE; 
THENCE N 02°11'39"E A DISTANCE OF 1,618.25' TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE  S 88°15'47"E A 
DISTANCE OF 1,747.25' TO A NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE S 00°48'39"E A DISTANCE OF 1,487.52' TO A BENT 
IRON BAR; THENCE N 89°45'22"E A DISTANCE OF 683.75' TO A NEW IRON PIPE; WHICH IS THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN AREA OF 6,469,903 SQUARE FEET, 148.529 ACRES. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: D936C727-E314-4549-BFDF-46AC641A80C8

Michele Raby
Rectangle

Michele Raby
Rectangle

Michele Raby
Rectangle

Michele Raby
Rectangle











































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After Recording Mail to: Town of Rolesville 

 P. O. Box 250 

   Rolesville, NC  27571 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 

OF THE TOWN OF ROLESVILLE UNDER THE 

AUTHORITY GRANTED BY PART 1, ARTICLE 4A 

CHAPTER 160A OF THE GENERAL STATUTES OF NORTH CAROLINA 

 

ORDINANCE 2024-O-09 

CASE: ANX-24-02 (MERRITT) 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Commissioners for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina 

has adopted a resolution under G.S. 160A-31 stating its intent to annex the area described below; and 

 

WHEREAS, the petition has been certified by the Town Clerk as to its sufficiency of meeting G.S. 

160A-31; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of this annexation was held in the Town Board Room 

at Rolesville Town Hall located at 502 Southtown Circle, Rolesville, NC 27571 at 7:00 pm or thereafter 

on September 17, 2024, after due notice; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Commissioners finds that the proposed annexation meets the 

requirements of G.S. 160A-31; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of Commissioners of the Town 

of Rolesville, North Carolina that: 

 

 Section 1.  By the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the following described contiguous 

properties owned by the Liles Family, LLC, Wesley and Roxey Wilkins, Linda and Henry Self c/o 

Samantha Self, Sue and James Merritt, Betty Gunz and William Rogers, is hereby annexed and made part 

of the Town of Rolesville effective as of September 17, 2024: 

 
All that certain real property situated in the Town of Rolesville, Wake Forest Township, Wake County, North 

Carolina, described as follows: 

 
BEGINNING AT A NEW IRON PIPE, SAID NEW IRON PIPE HAVING NC GRID NAD 83/2011 COORDINATE  
N(y): 783309.27’ E(x): 2164159.73’, SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING LOCATED ON THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF ROLESVILLE 
ROAD (S.R.#1003), SAID NEW IRON PIPE BEING THE COMMON FRONT CORNER OF PARCEL PIN# 1768.03-33-7689 AND 
SUBJECT PARCEL; THENCE ALONG ROLESVILLE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY  
S 06°55'13"E A DISTANCE OF 384.56' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°12'17"E A DISTANCE OF 100.22' TO A POINT; THENCE S 
07°09'39"E A DISTANCE OF 100.17' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°53'34"E A DISTANCE OF 100.14' TO A POINT; THENCE S 



08°05'58"E A DISTANCE OF 226.00' TO A POINT; THENCE S 07°02'42"E A DISTANCE OF 8.65' TO A POINT; THENCE N 
79°37'37"W A DISTANCE OF 135.63' TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 
405.68', WITH A RADIUS OF 1,180.00', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 69°46'41"W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 403.68',; TO 
A POINT; THENCE  
N 59°55'45"W A DISTANCE OF 7.64' TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 
264.63', WITH A RADIUS OF 700.00', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N 70°45'33"W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 263.06', TO A 
POINT; THENCE S 03°01'29"E A DISTANCE OF 127.16’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE S 86°15'26"W A DISTANCE OF 
1,907.10' TO AN AXLE;I I  THENCE S 02°38'01"W A DISTANCE OF 41.66' TO A POINT; THENCE S 86°36'19"W A DISTANCE OF 
80.15' TO A POINT; THENCE  
N 35°30'42"W A DISTANCE OF 25.71' TO A POINT; THENCE N 18°40'09"W A DISTANCE OF 18.02' TO A POINT; THENCE N 
16°33'18"E A DISTANCE OF 29.75' TO A POINT; THENCE S 65°55'14"W A DISTANCE OF 41.93' TO A POINT; THENCE N 
34°33'28"W A DISTANCE OF 67.60' TO A POINT; THENCE N 63°56'22"W A DISTANCE OF 58.64' TO A POINT; THENCE S 
12°10'41"E A DISTANCE OF 28.75' TO A POINT; THENCE  
S 62°16'28"W A DISTANCE OF 40.10' TO A POINT; THENCE N 48°52'56"W A DISTANCE OF 41.03' TO A POINT; THENCE S 
66°34'20"W A DISTANCE OF 183.88' TO A POINT; THENCE S 42°14'08"W A DISTANCE OF 280.13' TO A POINT; THENCE S 
10°05'45"E A DISTANCE OF 34.24' TO A POINT; THENCE S 66°32'41"W A DISTANCE OF 69.18' TO A POINT; THENCE S 
67°17'00"W A DISTANCE OF 140.16' TO A POINT; THENCE S 72°23'53"W A DISTANCE OF 370.65' TO A POINT; THENCE S 
89°38'01"W A DISTANCE OF 175.48' TO A POINT; THENCE N 03°38'40"W A DISTANCE OF 93.43' TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; 
THENCE S 89°04'03"W A DISTANCE OF 186.00’ TO A NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE N 00°20'34" W A DISTANCE OF 1,150.25’ TO A 
NEW IRON PIPE; THENCE N 88°47'41"E A DISTANCE OF 1,587.76' TO AN EXISTING MASON NAIL IN A STONE; THENCE N 
02°11'39"E A DISTANCE OF 1,618.25' TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE; THENCE  S 88°15'47"E A DISTANCE OF 1,747.25' TO A NEW 
IRON PIPE; THENCE S 00°48'39"E A DISTANCE OF 1,487.52' TO A BENT IRON BAR; THENCE N 89°45'22"E A DISTANCE OF 
683.75' TO A NEW IRON PIPE; WHICH IS THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN AREA OF 6,469,903 SQUARE FEET, 
148.529 ACRES. 

 
 

 Section 2.  That the Mayor and Board of Commissioners directs a duly certified copy of this 

ordinance and annexation boundary map be submitted for filing to the Office of the Register of Deeds of 

Wake County and the Office of the Secretary of the State of North Carolina. 

  

 Adopted this 17 day of September, 2024. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Ronnie I. Currin 

      Town of Rolesville Mayor 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I, Robin E. Peyton, Town Clerk for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina, do hereby certify the foregoing 

to be a true copy of an ordinance duly adopted at the meeting of the Town Board of Commissioners held 

on this 17TH day of September, 2024. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Robin E. Peyton 

Town Clerk 



 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-O-10  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF 
ROLESVILLE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE 
TOWN OF ROLESVILLE TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 

148.529 ACRES LOCATED AT 0 LOUISBURG ROAD, 1224 ROLESVILLE ROAD, 
and 6200 EMILY LANE , BEING WAKE COUNTY TAX PINS 1758928330, 1768236815, 

AND 1768328863 FROM THE TOWN OF ROLESVILLE RESIDENTIAL LOW (RL) 
ZONING DISTRICT TO A RESIDENTIAL HIGH DENSITY CONDITIONAL 

ZONING DISTRICT (RH-CZ) AND A GENERAL COMMERCIAL CONDITIONAL 
ZONING DISTRICT (GC-CZ) 

 
REZ-24-01, MERRITT 

 
WHEREAS, the application submitted by BRD Land and Investment on behalf of 
property owners Liles Family, LLC (Tract 1), Wesley and Roxey Wilkins, Linda and 
Edward Self (c/o Samantha Self), Sue and James Merritt, Kathy Llamas and William 
Merritt (Tract 2), and Betty Gunz and William Rogers (Tract 3)  for the rezoning of land 
hereinafter described was duly filed with the Planning Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Board was presented the application for Recommendation on 
August 26, 2024, and the Board of Commissioners held a Legislative hearing on 
September 17, 2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, mailed notices and property sign postings were carried out in advance of 
the Legislative hearing pursuant to G.S. § 160D-602 and the Land Development 
Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Board submitted its recommendation to the Board of 
Commissioners recommending Approval of said application that was generally 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan for the lands hereinafter described, all in 
accordance with the requirements of the Town of Rolesville Land Development 
Ordinance and the provisions of Chapter 160D, Article 6, of the North Carolina General 
Statutes;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town 
of Rolesville, North Carolina: 
 
Section 1: The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described 
in Exhibit 1 – Legal Description, which is incorporated herein by reference, and said 
lands are hereafter referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 
 
Section 2: The parcels identified by the Wake County Tax Parcel Identification Numbers 
1758928330, 1768236815 AND 1768328863, and described in Exhibit 1, are currently 
located within Wake County, but will be within the Town’s Corporate Limits upon 
adoption of Ordinance 2024-O-09 for ANX-24-02. 
 
Section 3: The Town of Rolesville Land Development Ordinance, including the Town of 
Rolesville North Carolina Official Zoning District Map, which is a part of said Ordinance, 
is hereby amended by changing the zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from 
TOWN OF ROLESVILLE RESIDENTIAL LOW (RL) DISTRICT TO A RESIDENTIAL 
HIGH DENSITY CONDITIONAL ZONING DISTRICT (RH-CZ) AND A GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT (GC-CZ), subject to the conditions stated herein.  
 



 
 

Section 4: The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the standards and conditions in 
Exhibit 2 – Conditions of Approval dated September 17, 2024, which are voluntarily 
imposed as part of this rezoning. 
 
Section 5:  The Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official 
Zoning District Map for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina, to be physically revised 
and amended to reflect the zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 
 
Section 6: After reviewing all the information presented at the Legislative hearing and 
the Town of Rolesville plans, policies and ordinances, the Rolesville Board of 
Commissioners find the Rezoning map amendment request reasonable and consistent 
with the 2017 Comprehensive Plan and is in the interest of the public and adopted a Plan 
Consistency and Reasonableness Statement. 
 
Section 7: The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the Conditions imposed 
including the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for 
in the Land Development Ordinance.  

 
Adopted and effective this the 17th  day of September 2024.     

  
  

 
 ____________________________________ 
 Ronnie Currin 
 Mayor 
  

ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________  __________________________________ 
Robin Peyton     David J. Neill 
Town Clerk     Town Attorney 
 



 

 
TA-24-02 

Memo 
To:  Mayor Currin and Town Board of Commissioners 

From:  Meredith Gruber, Planning Director 

Date:  September 12, 2024 

Re: TA-24-02 Land Development Ordinance (LDO) Text Amendments to 

Building Height Requirements  

 

Note:  This is the staff report provided to the Planning Board on August 26, 2024. 
 

Background 

Planning staff have received multiple inquiries from the development community about the 

potential for allowance of greater building height in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning 

District.  The Planning Department team has reviewed building height requirements for all the 

zoning districts found in the Land Development Ordinance (LDO) and look forward to discussing 

the proposed text amendments with the Planning Board. 

 

Proposed Text Amendments 

The proposed text amendments for Land Development Ordinance (LDO) Chapter 3. Zoning 

Districts are shown below.  Proposed text is shown in blue and underlined, and deletions are 

shown in red strikethrough. 

 

Zoning District Building Height Requirement 

3.1. Residential Districts 

Residential Low (RL) Max. 35’ 

Residential Medium (RM) Max. 35’ 

Residential High (RH) Max. 35 45’ 

Manufactured Home (MH) Max. 35’ 

3.2. Nonresidential Districts 

General Commercial (GC) Max. 35 60’ 

Commercial Highway (CH) Max. 35’ Without Sprinklers, 60’ With Sprinklers 

Office and Professional (OP) Max. 35 45’ 

Business, Industrial, and 
Technology (BT) 

Max. 35’ Without Sprinklers, 60’ With Sprinklers 

General Industrial (GI) Max. 35’ Without Sprinklers, 60’ With Sprinklers 

3.4 Mixed Use Districts 

Town Center (TC) Max: 35 60’ (By Right) 



2 
 

If Design Alternative Is Approved, Maximum 60’ In 
Height If an Interior Sprinkler or Fire Suppression 
System Is Required. If No Sprinkler or Fire 
Suppression System Is Provided, The Building Shall 
Not Exceed 35’ in Height 

Building Heights Above 35’ Require Additional 
Compatibility Standards Per Section 6.2.3. 

Activity Center (AC) 

Max: 35 60’ (By Right) 

60’ May Be Permitted If Building Is 100 Feet or Greater 
from Boundary of District and If an Interior Sprinkler or 
Fire Suppression System Is Provided. If No Sprinkler 
or Fire Suppression System Is Provided, The Building 
Shall Not Exceed 35’ in Height 

Building Heights Above 35’ Require Additional 
Compatibility Standards Per Section 6.2.3. 

Neighborhood Center (NC) 

Max: 35 45’ (By Right) 

60’ May Be Permitted If Building Is 100 Feet or Greater 
from Boundary of District and If an Interior Sprinkler or 
Fire Suppression System Is Provided. If No Sprinkler 
or Fire Suppression System Is Provided, The Building 
Shall Not Exceed 35’ in Height 

Building Heights Above 35’ Require Additional 
Compatibility Standards Per Section 6.2.3. 

 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of TA-24-02 due to the creation of a range of building height options 

that correlate to the intensity of Rolesville’s zoning districts. 

 

Proposed Motion 

Motion to recommend (approval or denial) of TA-24-02. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE TOWN  BOARD MEETINGS 

(Please note this schedule is subject to change) 
 

 

October 8, 2024  Town Board Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. (Staff Reporting: PD) 

• Proclamation: Breast Cancer Awareness Month 

• Proclamation:  Community Planning Month 

• Consent: Minutes of September 3rd and September 17th. 

• Direct Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency and Call for Legislative Hearing: ANX-24-04 
– 1413 Forrestville Road. 

• Acceptance of Granite Acres Greenway Bid/Budget Amendment 

• Continued Legislative Hearing: ANX-23-04 (200 School Street).   

• Legislative Hearing: ANX-23-04 / REZ-23-05 – Scarboro Apartments. 

• Legislative Hearing: LDO TA-24-02 – Non-residential Zoning District Building 
Heights 

• . 

 

October 22, 2024 Town Board Work Session – 6:00 p.m. - FYIs 

• Rolesville Downtown Development Association Report. 

• Presentation of Final Draft of Affordable Housing Plan – TPNA, Inc.. 

• . 

 

November 5, 2024 Town Board Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

• Consent: Minutes of October 8th and October 22nd 

• Legislative Hearing: ANX-24-04 – 1413 Forrestville Road. 

• . 

• . 

•  

November 19, 2024 Town Board Work Session – 6:00 p.m. 

• . 

• . 

• . 

• . 

 

December 3, 2024 Town Board Regular Meeting/Organizational Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

• Consent: Minutes of November 5th and November 19th  

• Consent: Adoption of Town Board and Advisory Board Calendars for 2025. 

• Consent: Mayor’s appointment of Advisory Board Liaisons if applicable. 

 

December 17, 2024 Town Board Work Session – 6:00 p.m. 

 

 
Planning Items to be Scheduled by Planning Director: 

• Alternative Parking Plan, 414 S. Main Street 

• TA-24-xx – LDO RM Zoning District – (Cluster) Building Setbacks 

• TBD – TA-24-XXX – LDO Text Amendment Next Round TBD 

 



TB_FUTUREMEETINGS_20240917  


	01e2c2b5-a0b0-4b57-905f-02f14bd01847.pdf
	v3_rez-24-01_gunz_map-amendment-r1.pdf
	v3_rez-24-01_james-sue-merritt_map-amendment (1).pdf
	v3_rez-24-01_liles_map-amendment.pdf
	v3_rez-24-01_merritt-llamas_map-amendment.pdf
	v3_rez-24-01_rogers_map-amendment.pdf
	v3_rez-24-01_self_map-amendment.pdf
	v3_rez-24-01_wlkins_map-amendment.pdf

	1315ccd8-8111-43ea-9255-59d8e1a54bba.pdf
	US 401 Bypass at Young Street
	Young Street at Quarry Road / The Point North Driveway
	Young Street at Rolesville HS Driveway / The Point South Driveway
	Rolesville Road at Merritt Property Driveway
	Rolesville Road at Fowler Road
	Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road
	1.0 Introduction
	2.0 Inventory of Traffic Conditions
	2.1 Study Area
	2.2 Proposed Access
	2.3 Existing COnditions
	2.4 Future COnditions
	2.4.1 Broadmoor (fka Woodlief Assemblage)
	2.4.2 The Point
	2.4.3 Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road


	3.0 Trip Generation and Distribution
	3.1 Trip Generation
	3.2 Site Trip Distribution

	4.0 Traffic Volumes
	4.1 Data Collection
	4.2 Background Traffic Growth
	4.3 Adjacent Development Traffic
	4.3.1 1216 Rolesville Road
	4.3.2 Broadmoor (fka Woodlief Assemblage)
	4.3.3 Kalas Falls
	4.3.4 Rolesville Crossing
	4.3.5 The Point
	4.3.6 The Preserve at Moody Farm
	4.3.7 Tucker-Wilkins

	4.4 No-BUild Traffic Volumes
	4.5 Build Traffic Volumes

	5.0 Capacity Analysis
	5.1 2024 Existing
	5.2 2028 No-Build
	5.3 2028 Build
	5.4 2028 Build Improved
	5.4.1 Proposed Improvements
	US 401 Bypass at Young Street
	Young Street at Quarry Road / The Point North Driveway
	Young Street at Rolesville HS Driveway / The Point South Driveway
	Rolesville Road at Merritt Property Driveway
	Rolesville Road at Fowler Road
	Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road


	6.0 Recommendations
	US 401 Bypass at Young Street
	Young Street at Quarry Road / The Point North Driveway
	Young Street at Rolesville HS Driveway / The Point South Driveway
	Rolesville Road at Merritt Property Driveway
	Rolesville Road at Fowler Road
	Rolesville Road at Mitchell Mill Road

	7.0 References
	8.0 APPENDIX

	3baaf58f-c00d-496c-9fef-5a12fbd32ce9.pdf
	overall-annex-area_148.529-ac_merritt_legal-descr.pdf
	V2.1_MERRITT SUB_ANNEXATION MAP-signed.pdf
	V2_ANX-24-02_Annexation Petition_Gunz_.pdf
	V2_ANX-24-02_Annexation Petition_James & Sue Merritt_.pdf
	V2_ANX-24-02_Annexation Petition_Liles_.pdf
	V2_ANX-24-02_Annexation Petition_Merritt & Llamas_.pdf
	V2_ANX-24-02_Annexation Petition_Rogers_.pdf
	V2_ANX-24-02_Annexation Petition_Self_.pdf
	V2_ANX-24-02_Annexation Petition_Wilkins_.pdf




